:_.— i L . oo “ ]-":4" \.21_4_ o *
(FOA] o G V0 TG )

Fort Ord
Reuse Authority

Board Packet

For

Board Meeting
July 11, 2008




Fort Ord Reuse Authority

100 12th Street, Building 2880, Marina, CA 93933
Phone: (831) 883-3672 -« Fax: (831) 883-3675 *» www.fora.org

The Fort Ord Reuse Authority (‘FORA”) Board meeting on July 11,
2008, wili be immediately followed by a joint FORA and Marina Coast
Water District (‘“MCWD") Board meeting. At the joint meeting, joint actions
by both Boards and separate actions by the MCWD Board are requested.
Please see the joint meeting board report for items 6(a) 1 through 5.

Call FORA Executive Officer Michael Houlemard or Assistant Executive
Officer Jim Feeney with any questions at (831) 883-3672.



Fort Ord Reuse Authority

100 12" Street, Building 2880, Marina, CA 93933
Phone: (831) 883-3672 e Fax: (831) 883-3675 & www.fora.org

FORA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Friday, July 11, 2008
4:00-4:20 PM (REGULAR BOARD MEETING) ~ 4:30-6:00 PM (JOINT MEETING)

FORA Conference Facility/Bridge Center
201 13" Street, Building 2925, Marina (on the former Fort Ord)

AGENDA
FOR
REGULAR FORA BOARD MEETING

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 4:00 PM
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Members of the audience wishing to address the Board

on matters within the jurisdiction of the Authority but not on the agenda may do so during

the Public Comment Period. You may speak for a maximum of three minutes on any subject.
Public comments on specific agenda items will be heard at the time the matter is being
considered by the Board.

5. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION
a. June 13, 2008 board meeting minutes

nal

b.  Authority Counsel’s employment agreement

6. OLD BUSINESS
a. Habitat Conservation Plan approval process INFORMATION

7. NEW BUSINESS - none

8. EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
a. Administrative Committee report INFORMATION

b. Fort Ord Reuse Authority Annual Report for FY 2007-08 INFORMATION

c. FORA Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Year 2008/09
- 2021/2022: Distribution of Final Approved Document INFORMATION

9. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE
10. ADJOURNMENT

(Information about items on this agenda is available at the FORA office, located at 100 12" Street, Building 2880, Marina,
on the former Fort Ord, You may also call FORA at 831-883-3672 for further assistance.)



ACTION MINUTES
OF THE
FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
Fort Ord Reuse Authority Conference Facility/Bridge Center

July 11,2008 APPROVED

Chair/ Mayor Joe Russell called the meeting to order at 4:04 p.m. and requested a roll call:

CALL TO ORDER

Voting members:
Chair/Mayor Russell (City of Del Rey Oaks) 1** Vice Chair/Mayor Rubio (City of Seaside)

Mayor Wilmot (City of Marina) Councilmember Mancini (City of Seaside)
Mayor Della Sala (City of Monterey) Councilmember Davis (City of Pacific Grove)
Mayor Pendergrass (City of Sand City) Mayor McCloud (City of Carmel-by-the-Sea)

Supervisor Calcagno (County of Monterey) Supervisor Mettee-McCutchon (County of Monterey)

Absent were Janet Barnes (City of Salinas), Councilmember McCall (City of Marina), and Supervisor
Potter (County of Monterey).

Ex-officio members:

Graham Bice (UC Santa Cruz) Vicki Nakamura (Monterey Peninsula College)
Hunter Harvath {Monterey-Salinas Transit) Debbie Hale (TAMC)
Gail Youngblood (U.S. Army) Kenneth Nishi (Marina Coast Water District)

Arriving shortly after the call to order was Tony Boles (CSUMB). Absent were representatives from the
17" Congressional District, the 15" State Senate District, the 27" State Assembly District, Monterey
Peninsula Unified School District, and the U.S. Army.

With a quorum present, Chair Russell opened the meeting.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chair Russell asked Mayor Della Sala, who agreed, to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Executive Officer Houlemard called attention to the number of handouts at the table, pointing out that they
pertain to the joint meeting agenda items.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - none

CONSENT AGENDA

There were two items on the Consent Agenda: Item 5a (June 13, 2008 board megting minutes) and Item Sb
(Authority Counsel’s employment agreement). Motion to approve Items 5a and 5b was made by Mayor
Rubio and seconded by Councilmember Davis. Mayor McCloud pointed out the need for clarification in
Section 4a on page 1, of the agreement, specifically that authority counsel’s office will be located in the

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
July 11,2008
Page 1



13.

FORA office, which will not require additional funding for a lease and a support person at an outside
location. Mr. Houlemard confirmed that and said that outside counsel had recommended some other
clarifying language to Section 4b, which had not yet been received. He recommended that the Board
approve the agreement, along with the additional language, and authorize him to execute it once reviewed
by independent counsel. Mayor Rubio and Councilmember Davis accepted the additions to authority
counsel’s agreement and the motion to approve Items 5a and 5b carried.

OLD BUSINESS

ltem 9a - Habitat Conservation Plan (“HCP”) approval process: Director of Planning and Finance Steve
Endsley summarized the staff report and reported that a meeting had been scheduled on July 23", which
will cover reworking the scope of services for Denise Duffy & Associates, FORA’s environmental
consultant, to recombine the Federal NEPA and State CEQA processes, which the regulators are more
comfortable with.

NEW BUSINESS - none
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

There were three items in this report: Item 8a (Administrative Committee report), Item 8b (Fort Ord Reuse
Authority Annual Report for FY 2007-08) and Item 8c (FORA Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal
Year 2008/09 — 2021/2022: Distribution of Final Approved Document). Re Item 8a: Executive Officer
Houlemard said there had been lengthy discussions about the capacity charges when the Marina Coast
Water District budgets, rates and charges item were presented at the last two meetings (see the minutes),
and the committee members recommended that the capacity charges be agendized separately for further
discussion, before a recommendation to the Board can be crafted. He said the capacity charges would be
returned to the Board at a later date.

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE

Executive Officer Houlemard reported that the Governor’s staff review of the Early Transfer/ Covenant
Deferral Request (CDR) is expected to be completed shortly. As soon as the Governor executes the
documents, the property transfers will begin.

ADJOURNMENT

Chair Russell adjourned the meeting at 4:17 p.m.

Minutes prepared by Linda Stiehl, Deputy Clerk.

App

ed by

Michael A. Héulemard, Jr., Executive Offi er/Clerk

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
July 11, 2008
Page 2



THORITY BOARD REPOR

__FORT ORD REUSE A

Subject: Authority Counsel's employment agreement

Meeting Date: July 11, 2008

Agenda Number: 5b ACTION

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the Executive Officer to execute the attached Employment Agreement with
Authority Counsel

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

At its June 13, 2008 meeting, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority ("FORA") Board of Directors
approved funding and the method for adjusting the contracting for the services of the
Authority Counsel. The Executive Officer has negotiated the terms of the attached
contract and they are acceptable to the Authority Counsel. Using this method, FORA
will receive the same level of service with increased access and response time.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller /ﬁ Z—/g"“ /A8,

Funding for this contract is within the approved FY 2008-2009 Annual Budget.

COORDINATION:

Authority Counsel, Special Counsel

Prepared and appyove

A

Mlchaelﬁ Houlbmard Jr.

rd ¢ ZKEYly 1185b s enploying agroomt doc



Attachment A
To Item 5b

FORA Board Meeting, July 11, 2008

Employment Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1st day of July, 2008 by and
between FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY, (“FORA™), a public entity governed by a Board of
Directors, with Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. as Executive Officer, and Gerald D. Bowden
(“BOWDEN?™), serving in the capacity as Authority Counsel, as noted in Section 2:08.030 of the
Fort Ord Reuse Authority Master Resolution, for legal services under the direction of its Board of
Directors or Executive Officer.

1. RECITALS. This Agreement is made and entered into with respect to the following facts:

a) Bowden is expected to be present at the FORA offices two or three work days per
week as coordinated with the Executive Officer, but not to exceed 19 hours in any one week. If
actual attendance at the FORA offices is deemed unnecessary by the Executive Officer then an
equivalent amount of time working at a remote location is permitted. The total number of hours
worked under this agreement is limited to 999.

b) The public interest, convenience, and necessity require this Agreement.

2.  TERM. Bowden will commence work under this Agreement on July 1, 2008 and will
diligently perform the services under this Agreement until June 30, 2009.

3. COMPENSATION.

a) Salary. As compensation for services under this Agreement, Bowden will be paid up to
$120,000 per year gross income, to be paid in equal semi-monthly payroll installments in
accordance with the FORA’s general compensation program. Taxes and other costs that are paid
as a part of Bowden’s compensation will be deducted from the gross income annual total.

b) Employee Taxes. Bowden is subject to Federal and State taxes (including Social
Security and Medicare) which FORA will withhold from his payroll installments.

¢) Employee Benefits. Bowden will not be eligible for retirement, health insurance
(medical, vision or dental), vacation, sick leave, or other benefits offered employees of FORA.
FORA will pay worker’s compensation and unemployment coverage as may be required.

4,  AVAILABILITY/SUPPORT.

a) To accommodate Bowden’s services, FORA will provide office space, incidental
clerical support, office equipment such as computer and telephone, access to copy machines,
related postage, and necessary office supplies.

b) To support Bowden’s Authority Counsel services, FORA will from time to time
provide additional legal service support for federal grant oversight, certain bond counsel
requirements, and for certain litigation.



c) Bowden may also be required to be accessible to inquiries by the Executive
Officer or Board members outside of the terms of this fixed price agreement for his services
without additional compensation.

5. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES. Bowden will be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses
according to the adopted policies of FORA.

6. TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated in the following manner:

a) By mutual agreement of the parties hereto, express in writing; or

b) By Bowden giving FORA thirty (30) days written notice of such termination being
effective upon the thirty-first (31st) day after giving of such notice; or

¢) Bowden acknowledges that he is an at-will employee of FORA under the direction of
the Board of Directors, and serves at the pleasure of the Board of Directors and may be
dismissed, and this Agreement terminated, at the discretion of the Board of Directors for any
reason or for no reason at all.

7. NOTICES. Notices under this Agreement shall be by United States mail, postage prepaid,
addressed as follows, ot such other address as the parties may establish and provide written
notice thereof:

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Gerald D. Bowden
ATTN: Executive Officer 225 Ross Street
100 12th Street, Bldg. 2880 Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Marina, CA 93933

8.  PARTIAL INVALIDITY. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the parties agree that the remaining
provisions shall nonetheless continue in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date
and year first written above.

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. - Executive Officer Gerald D. Bowden - Attorney

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Donald G. Freeman - Attorney



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT

'OLD BUSINESS
Subject: Habitat Conservation Plan approval process
Meeting Date: July 11, 2008
Agenda Number: 6a INFORMATION
RECOMMENDATION(S):

Receive a status report regarding preparation of Habitat Conservation Plan (*HCP”) and
State of California 2081 Incidental Take Permit (“ITP") Process.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

Recent Developments:

1. On March 28, 2008, California Resources Secretary Mike Crisman met with the
Fort Ord Reuse Authority’s (‘FORA”") legislative representatives and confirmed
prior commitments to employ sufficient staff and resources within California
Department of Fish and Game (“CDFG”) to meet review schedules and resolve
outstanding HCP issues.

2. On April 21, 2008, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service ("USFWS”) Assistant Director
Brian Arroyo gave assurances that he would apply his resources to resolve
funding issues between USFWS and the Bureau of Land Management (“BLM")
and to meet HCP review schedules for the HCP and HCP National
Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”) documents.

3. On May 5, 2008, Denise Duffy and Associates, NEPA/ California Environmental
Quality Act (“CEQA”) consultant, held a conference call meeting of the principals
to schedule final Environmental Impact Statement/ Environmental Impact Report
(“EIS/EIR") document processing.

4. On June 18, 2008, the HCP working group reviewed the revised Monitoring
Chapter and provided feedback to Jones & Stokes on the Implementation and
Funding Chapters.

5. The next HCP working group meeting is scheduled for July 23, 2008.

Past Actions:

FORA completed a Draft HCP on January 23, 2007 covering topics necessary to submit
the HCP to CDFG and an application for a basewide State 2081 ITP. The Draft HCP
was circutated to USFWS, CDFG, FORA's land use jurisdictions, and other prospective
habitat managers participating in the program. USFWS provided written comments on
the Draft HCP in March 2007, July 2007, and February 2008. CDFG provided written
comments in April 2007.

To define necessary steps to obtain CDFG approval of a basewide State 2081 Permit,
FORA's legislative representatives met with key stakeholders in CDFG, California
Department of Parks and Recreation (“State Parks”), and the Governor's Office on April
30, 2007. Subsequent meetings were held with Mike Crisman, State of California
Resources Secretary, and John McCamman, CDFG Chief Deputy Director (at the time).
These discussions identified several steps for FORA and CDFG to take to secure a




successful 2081 permit. The representatives and stakeholders identified a need for a
larger scope for the HCP consultant work, requiring FORA to redistribute a Request for
Qualifications (“RFQ") containing a larger budget than previously included in the March
2007 RFQ. In return, key stakeholders in Sacramento gave assurances they would
perform required work on their end and support a “final” process. In response to the
need for an expanded scope of work, at its May 11, 2007 meeting, the FORA Board
directed staff to redesignate unused HCP funds in Fiscal Year (“FY”) 06-07 for HCP
consultant work and directed staff to enter into a contract, not to exceed $150,000, with
an HCP consultant to conduct the larger scope of work.

FORA staff received several responses to its RFQ and selected Jones & Stokes, Inc.
(“Jones & Stokes”) for the contract, which gives FORA the expertise to respond to
USFWS and CDFG comments on the draft HCP. Jones & Stokes successfully
completed comparable HCP’s in Northern California and is the author of the 1997 Fort
Ord Habitat Management Plan. The initial contract was for $85,445 and covers
revisions to Draft HCP chapters, resulting from agency comments and FORA staff
concurrence. An amendment to this contract for additional tasks and budget to
recombine State and Federal HCP’s was approved on September 14, 2007. The
approved FY 06-07 and FY 07-08 budgets included additional funding for this purpose.

Jones & Stokes have identified a window of opportunity to expedite permit issuance. As
noted, Jones & Stokes have proposed recombining the truncated State and Federal
HCP processes into one HCP document and one combined public review period, which
would result in a shorter timeframe for Federal and State permit issuance and a
stronger HCP document. Significant progress on the State HCP made in the last year
should allow Jones & Stokes to complete the necessary Federal HCP chapters on an
expedited basis. This allows FORA to use the HCP document for both Federal NEPA
and State CEQA permit applications.

On May 23, 2007, FORA hosted an HCP working group meeting among Jones &
Stokes, FORA, CDFG, USFWS, University of California (*UC"), BLM, and State Parks to
discuss agency comments on the Draft HCP Funding Chapter. The HCP working group
identified issues and discussed probable solutions to improve the Draft HCP funding
section. A follow-up conference call occurred on May 31, 2007. To expedite agency
review of the Draft HCP, Jones & Stokes suggested that USFWS and CDFG prepare
comment letters on Draft HCP chapters reviewed to date and that the agencies offer
oral comments on the remaining chapters. This approach was well received and was
discussed in further detail during a strategy session among FORA, USFWS, and CDFG
held in early June. On July 12, 2007, the HCP working group met, reviewed past
comments received from USFWS and CDFG, reviewed Jones & Stokes’ technical
memo proposing revisions to the draft HCP, and reviewed Jones & Stokes’ draft costing
model. On August 28, 2007, the HCP working group held another meeting, in which the
group: provided additional feedback on the draft cesting model, requested feedback
from working group members on Draft HCP sections, addressed questions on the Early
Transfer/ Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement, and asked for feedback from
USFWS and CDFG on inclusion of the proposed alignment of the Multi-Modal Corridor
along Intergarrison Road in lieu of a previous alignment bisecting the UC Fort Ord
Natural Reserve. On November 15, 2007, the working group reviewed a draft HCP
Implementing Agreement, a required HCP document.

FORA Board Meeting
July 11, 2008
ltem 6a - Page 2



On October 1, 2007, Mayor Joe Russell, then Marina Mayor lla Mettee-McCutchon, and
Mayor Ralph Rubio met with State of California Resources Secretary Crisman and
CDFG Interim Director McCamman and, as a consequence, a letter was drafted
demonstrating CDFG support for FORA’s Early Transfer/ Environmental Services
Cooperative Agreement activities. In December 2007, Jones & Stokes personnel met
with USFWS in Ventura regarding staff transition and other issues. Jones & Stokes
presented the revised draft HCP Funding Chapter, costing model assumptions/inputs,
and HCP development schedule to the HCP working group on April 10, 2008 to
generate feedback from working group members.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller % 7%’ ‘8,
In September 2007, the FORA Board amended the initial $85,445 Jones & Stokes

Contract resulting in a combined budget authority not to exceed $236,550. Funding for
this amount was designated in the fiscal year 06-07 and 07-08 budgets.

COORDINATION:

Executive Committee, Administrative Committee, Legislative Committee, Coordinated
Resources Management and Planning Team, City of Marina, County of Monterey, U.S.
Army, USFWS and CDFG personnel, Jones & Stokes, Denise Duffy & Associates, UC,
BLM, and various development teams.

Prepared by DQA{-’\,}‘:{\ 6\,0&0%/ Approve

Steve Endsley

Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.

FORA Board Meeting
July 11, 2008
Item 6a — Page 3



FORT ORD REUSE AU RITY BOARD REPOR

EXECUT! E
Subject: Administrative Committee report
Meeting Date: Juiy 11, 2008 INFORMATION

Agenda Number: 8a

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive a report from the Administrative Committee.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The Administrative Committee met on June 4. Joint Administrative Committee/ Water
Wastewater Oversight Committee meetings were held on June 4 and 18 and on July 2,
2008. The draft June 4" Administrative Committee meeting minutes were attached to the
June 13" board report for your review.

Attached to this report are the approved June 4™ and June 18" joint meeting minutes. The
July 2" joint meeting minutes have not yet been prepared.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

COORDINATION.:

Administrative Committee and Water/ Wastewater Oversight Committee

Prepared by%/te%k ;‘{ mpr

~ Linda L. Stiehl

wlingtwinnvond glorabalnepodst2Reuly | Ty - adirurn conusdos




Joint Administrative and Water/Wastewater Oversight Committee
Meeting Minutes
June 4, 2008

Administrative committee co-chair Doug Yount called the meeting to order. As indi
sign-in sheet, the following persons were in attendance:

Dick Goblirsch, City of Del Rey Oaks Heidi Burch, City of Carmel ;
Jim Cook, Monterey County Bob Schaffer, Marina Comm. Partners
Nick Nichols, Monterey County Mike Grant, MST

Graham Bice, UCMBEST Debbie Hale, TAMC

Diana Ingersoll, City of Seaside Michael Houlemard, FORA
Debby Platt, City of Marina Jim Feeney, FORA

Les Turnbeaugh, City of Monterey Jim Arnold, FORA

Steve Matarazzo, Sand City Steve Endsley, FORA

Tim O’Halloran, City of Seaside Jonathan Garcia, FORA

Mehul Mody, CSUMB Stan Cook, FORA

Ray Corpuz, City of Seaside Crissy Maras, FORA

Vicki Nakamura, MPC Suresh Prasad, MCWD

Rob Robinson, BRAC Jeff Cattaneo, MCWD

Garrett Haertel, MRWPCA
ITEM 1. Call to Order and roll call at time certain of 8:50 a.m.

Mr. Yount called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM. The roll call was accommodated via the
meeting sign-in sheet.

ITEM 2. Public Comment Period - None noted

ITEM 3. Approval of the May 14, 2008 Joint Administrative Committee and
Water/Wastewater Oversight Committee Minutes

There were no objections to approving the meeting minutes as presented.

ITEM 4. Old Business
a. Approve Marina Coast Water District water and wastewater systems

rates, fees and charges for fiscal year 2008-2009

Budget packages had been sent to Members electronically and paper copies were available to
Members at the meeting. At the last joint meeting Marina Coast Water District (“MCWD") staff
presented modifications to the budget. The action on this item is recommendation of the water
and wastewater systems rates, fees and charges to the FORA Board for approval.

Ray Corpuz, City of Seaside, asked how the cost center for the regional urban water
augmentation program (‘RUWAP") was presented in the budget. Suresh Prasad, MCWD noted
that the cost center is presented on page 9, beginning on line 288. The total cost of the RUWAP
is approximately $80M, not including FORA’s contribution of approximately $39M.

Mr. Yount asked if there were any recycled water pipeline projects being constructed within the
next five years other than the $2M project being shown in 2011/12. Jeff Cattaneo, MCWD, noted
that no additional projects are planned unless roadwork is planned. Mr. Yount asked about the
timing of the recycled pipeline being built through the Armstrong Ranch area. That project is
shown on fine 314, occurring in the out years of the program.

1




Tim O'Halloran, City of Seaside, asked if the timing of the recycled water pipeline being installed
in 2011/12 is consistent with the FORA roadway project on General Jim Moore Boulevard. FORA
Assistant Executive Officer Jim Feeney noted that the potable water system will be installed in
conjunction with the roadwork but the recycled line will be installed at a later time to the east of
the roadway.

Mr. Corpuz asked why the RUWAP was being presented in the budget instead of the regional
plan (‘REPOG”). Mr. Feeney responded that until the REPOG is approved, the RUWAP is the
approved project and is being shown as a placeholder. At this time, the REPOG is still being
evaluated by the California Public Utilities Commission (*CPUC"} and has not yet been approved.
It may be until the end of the year before the REPOG is approved.

Mr. Corpuz noted that although the REPOG has not changed, additional alternatives are now
being included. Mr. Feeney suggested that in order for MCWD staff to keep these committees
apprised of any new developments regarding the REPOG, an ongoing agenda item could be
established, beginning with the next Administrative Committee meeting agenda.

Mr. Yount asked if there would be an overall cost savings to the MCWD Capital Improvement
Program (“CIP”") if the REPOG replaces the RUWAP. Mr. Feeney noted that as an annual
budget, the numbers currently shown are subject to change. It is likely that next year's budget
will be significantly different. Jim Cook, Monterey County, suggested that the staff report for this
item include that information to clarify that the charges could look different if the REPOG is
approved.

Les Turnbeaugh, City of Monterey, asked if something was holding up the approval process of
the REPOG. FORA Executive Officer Michael Houlemard noted that the REPOG is currently
being reviewed by the CPUC and that it's moving along at normal processing time.

Bob Schaffer, Marina Community Partners (“MCP") asked about the status of negotiations
between MCWD and Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency ("MRWPCA"). Mr.
Cattaneo noted that negotiations are on hold pending the review of the REPOG. The current plan
for reclaimed water is still a part of the REPOG.

Mr. Yount asked how FORA's contribution to water augmentation was presented in the budget.
Mr. Prasad noted that the net result of the study is presented in the budget; the actual study was
presented to the committees at the previous budget presentation by Bartles and Wells.

Mr. Yount additionally noted several concerns of the City of Marina: it appears the CIP budget
has been reduced. if the CIP budget has been reduced there should be no need to increase
fees. It appears there are no grant funds proposed in the budget. Mr. Yount is hopeful that
MCWD will work toward receiving federal and state grant funds. It concerns the City that the
existing City of Marina customer base cost center was used as the security for the bonds. Mr.
Yount would like to know how the existing fund balance of approximately $17M is being used.
The City would also like to see a budget comparison chart for connections fees in other water
agency jurisdictions.

Mr. Cattaneo addressed Mr. Yount's concerns as follows: the MCWD fund balance (from bond
proceeds) is being used to fund capital improvements over the next 3-5 years. MCWD will add
the connection fee comparison chart to the budget. MCWD pursues all grant possibilities, but to
list potential grant funds in a budget would not be prudent. FORA's $39M contribution will be
clarified in the budget. There has not been a decrease in the CIP budget, only a shifting of
projects out in time. The capacity charge is based on fult build out and deferring the costs out in
time does not change the analysis of the cost to deliver. Mr. Yount then asked if the CIP has
remained the same, why the connection fee is being increased. Mr. Cattaneo replied that project
2



-

costs have gone up and will continue to inflate as they are pushed out in time. There is currently
no forecast of connection fees being collected by MCWD.

Mr. Houlemard added that an important part of the FORA Board selecting MCWD as the
water/wastewater purveyor on the former Fort Ord was their ability to finance based on their
existing customer base in Marina.

Mr. Houlemard asked MCWD to inciude in the budget the root causes of the requested fee
increase such as deferred project costs, development projections lower than anticipated,
customer base deferred, etc. Mr. Houlemard additionally noted that both FORA and MCWD
pursue grants at the federal and state level regularly.

Thom Gamble, MCP, noted that when MCWD was selected as a developer on the former Fort
Ord, there were no connection fees being collected. His developmentand disposition agreement
(“DDA") was set upon $0 connection fees. During the last fee increase process, the developers
and MCWD negotiated a $3800 connection fee and their DDA was adjusted accordingly. The
currently proposed increase to connection fees would raise their project costs by $17M,
approximately 400%. Mr. Cattaneo noted that the original connection fee increase was proposed
at $10K. The District negotiated with developers to come up with a hybrid connection fee that
would help fund improvements as development occurred along with income from the new
customers and FORA’s pledged contribution. However there has been no new development and
no new customers. MCWD has deferred all the projects that could possibly be deferred and still
provide service. Mr. Cattaneo additionally noted that if the REPOG project is approved, the
connection fee will be re-evaluated and will likely be reduced by approximately $3000. If the
connection fee is not increased, MCWD will not be able to build the system that development will
require.

Mr. Yount noted that with all the different development fees in place, it was becoming
economically infeasible to build on the former Fort Ord. Mr. Houlemard responded that unlike the
individual jurisdictions’ impact fees, the FORA development fee was in place when developers
were selected. The FORA development fee is directly related to a lawsuit brought by the Sierra
Club and subsequent suits by others and CEQA requirements.

Mr. Cook reiterated his suggestion that since the current budget includes best at the time
information, the staff report should be crafted to include all of the discussed caveats.

Mr. Houlemard asked if there would be any harm in waiting to increase the capacity fees until the
REPOG is approved. Mr. Yount agreed with the suggestion to wait until that information is

available.

Diana Ingersoll moved to approve the proposed rate increases to the FORA Board, but to defer
recommending on the proposed connection fee increase for a period of 6 months. Mr. Cook
seconded the motion. The vote was called for and the motion passed with a vote of 7-1 (the
representative of the City of Del Rey Oaks opposed the motion).

ITEM 5. New Business — none

ITEM 6. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 10:10 AM.



Joint Administrative and Water/Wastewater Oversight Committee
Meeting Minutes
June 18, 2008

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Executive Officer Michael A. Houlemard, Jr. called the meeting to order.
As indicated by the sign-in sheet, the following persons were in attendance:

Dick Goblirsch, City of Del Rey Oaks Bob Schaffer, Marina Comm. Partners

Graham Bice, UCMBEST Michael Houlemard, FORA

Diana Ingersoll, City of Seaside Jim Feeney, FORA

Debby Platt, City of Marina Jim Arnoldl,l FORA AP P ROVED
Les Turnbeaugh, City of Monterey Steve Endsley, FORA

Steve Matarazzo, Sand City Crissy Maras, FORA

Tim O’Halloran, City of Seaside Jim Heitzman, MCWD

Garrett Haerte!, MRWPCA Suresh Prasad, MCWD

Ray Corpuz, City of Seaside Jeff Cattaneo, MCWD

Vicki Nakamura, MPC

ITEM 1. Call to Order

Mr. Houlemard called the meeting to order at 8:57 AM. The roll call was accommodated via the
meeting sign-in sheet. There was a quorum of the Administrative Committee at this time; there

was not a quorum of the Water\Wastewater Oversight Committee (WWOC). A quorum of the
WWOC was achieved at 9:04 AM.

ITEM 2. Pledge of Allegiance

Les Turnbeaugh led the group in the pledge of allegiance.

ITEM 3. Public Comment Period — None presented

ITEM 4. Acknowledgements, announcements and correspondence

Mr. Houlemard announced the Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement summer

workshop being held on June 19" at 6:30 PM. The next series of clean-up activities will be
discussed at the meeting. He urged interested parties to attend.

ITEM 5. Approval of June 4, 2008 minutes
a. Administrative Committee meeting

The meeting minutes were approved as presented on a motion by Mr. Turnbeaugh and seconded
by Ray Corpuz.

b. Joint Administrative Committee and Water/Wastewater Oversight
Committee meeting

The meeting minutes were approved as presented on a motion by Mr. Turnbeaugh and seconded
by Graham Bice.

ITEM 6. Old Business
a. Regional Plenary Oversight Group (REPOG) - update

Mr. Houlemard noted that at the most recent FORA Board meeting, several board members
expressed concern regarding the changes to the REPOG proposal. He asked Jim Heitzman,

1



MCWD, to provide an update. Mr. Heitzman reported that the plan has been completed. Nothing
has been changed with the exception of the Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency's
(MRWPCA's) input that the replenishment plan is not viewed favorably. The plan will be
evaluated economically with the results being available within a week. He noted that the
agricultural industry wants legal protection on water, assurances that the peninsula will not have
first rights and compensation for the rubber dam.

Mr. Houlemard noted that the REPOG alternative is influential regarding rates, fees and charges.
This project may reduce overall water augmentation costs by 40-50%. Steve Endsley, FORA,
noted that the less the project costs, the faster the resource will become available.

Jim Feeney, FORA, asked MCWD to prepare a “white paper” that has been truthed by the Ag
industry addressing concerns and rumors. Mr. Houlemard agreed that a “white paper” would be a
good way to get all of the information out and address any issues. MCWD will prepare a "white
paper” and will have it available at the next meeting.

b. Approve Marina Coast Water District water and wastewater systems
rates, fees and charges for fiscal year 2008-2009

Mr. Heitzman noted his concern that the rates were approved but the fees were not. He noted
that MCWD fees have increased at a slower rate than other agency’s impact fees. He also noted
that if the fees are not approved, MCWD will not have the capital to make improvements to the
former Fort Ord water/wastewater system. Both Mr. Feeney and Mr. Endsley expressed their
concern that the budget could not move forward if the fee structure was not approved.

Debby Platt, City of Marina, expressed the City’s concern that an increase in fees would kil their
Dunes development project. Jeff Cattaneo, MCWD, noted that MCWD began meeting with the
Cities and their developers in November to discuss the fee increase and did not receive any
comments or questions from the Cities. Ms. Platt noted that the City of Marina has always held
the position that an increase in fees would kill the Dunes project.

Mr. Houlemard noted that as a public agency, MCWD could not go broke. They need the capital
to provide the needed infrastructure. He urged this group to think through the financials and
noted that perhaps the fees should be closer to what they would be if the REPOG were approved.

Mr. Endsley expressed his concern that the budget could not legally move forward without both
components being approved. He agreed with Mr. Houlemard that a placeholder fee should be
used to reflect the fee if the REPOG is approved (the placeholder fee is approximately $3K less,
per dwelling unit, than the currently proposed fee). Dick Goblirsch agreed that the rates could not
move forward if the fees were not approved.

An updated budget was reviewed with members, a new first paragraph was added to page two
and two additional pages, W4A and WWA4A were added to provide a comparison of capacity fees.

Mr. Turnbeaugh made the motion to continue this item to the July 2" meeting; the motion was
seconded by Mr. Corpuz and approved.

ITEM 7. New Business — none
ITEM 8. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 AM.



| FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

Subject: Fort Ord Reuse Authority Annual Report for FY 2007-08

Meeting Date: July 11, 2008
Agenda Number: 8b INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Receive the Fort Ord Reuse Authority’s Annual Report for fiscal year 2007-08.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

FORA staff provides project and activity updates on a quarterly basis in order to apprise
the FORA Board of Directors, local jurisdictions and interested members of the public of
the progress being made in the reuse efforts. FORA staff expects to publish several
hundred copies, which will be distributed to local jurisdictions and at national, state, and
local meetings and conventions, as well as to those persons interested in FORA
activities.

FISCAL IMPACT: | |
Reviewed by FORA Controller 2. 7/ % /8,

Production costs have been absorbed by the approved FORA FY 07-08 budget.

COORDINATION:

Public Information Consultant

Prepared by: (g, 1oz, Elod™
Q%}U\«Sharon Strickland

J¥indaNindawinword g¥orabrdireporis\2008yuly 11vevised 8b.doc



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
FY 2007/08 THROUGH 2021/22

©<mﬂ this past fiscal vyear,
phase |l improvements to
General Jim Moore Boulevard
were completed from McClure
Drive to Coe Avenue in the City of
Seaside.  General lim Moore
Boulevard is now a four-lane
facility from Fourth Street south to Coe Avenue. Designs
have been completed for phase IV improvements to
General Jim Moore Boulevard and Eucalyptus Road. Work
on these projects will commence in the next fiscal year,
pending completion of the Munitions and Explosives of
Concern cleanup within those roadway corridors.

A series of stakeholder meetings were conducted to
advance adjustments and refinements to the proposed
multi-modal corridor plan-line. Stakeholders include, but
are not limited to, Transportation Agency for Monterey
County, Monterey Salinas Transit, City of Marina,
Monterey County, California State University Monterey
Bay, University of California Monterey Bay Education,
Science and Technology Center, and FORA. A multi-party
memorandum of agreement has been presented to the
FORA Administrative Committee and once approved, will
move to each agency's respective policy board for
endorsement.

FORA's currently approved water augmentation project —
the Regional Urban Water Augmentation Program — is on
hold pending the finalization of the Monterey Regional
Water Supply Program, which, if approved by the
California Public Utilities Commission as a preferred
alternative, could significantly reduce the total project
costs for water augmentation on the former Fort Ord by
approximately S40M

FORA Board Member Agencies

Carmel-by-the-Sea, City of Del Rey Oaks, City of Marina,
City of Monterey, County of Monterey, City of Pacific
Grove, City of Sand City, City of Salinas, City of Seaside

Ex-Officio Members

17th Congressional District, 27th State Assembly District,
15th State Senate District, California State University Mon-
terey Bay, Marina Coast Water District, Monterey Peninsula
Unified School District, Monterey Peninsula College, Mon-
terey-Salinas Transit, Transportation Agency for Monterey
County, United States Army/Base Realignment & Closure
Office, University of California Santa Cruz

Fort Ord Reuse Authority
100 12th Street, Bldg. 2880
Maring, CA 93933
Phone: 831-883-3672
Fax: 831-883-3675

Wehbsite www fora org

T PSS UOUp o0 PO PR SR SSRGS

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

ANNUAL REPORT

JuLy 1, 2007 - JUNE 30, 2008

@ uring the past year, the former Fort Ord experienced,
a) significant strides in munitions cleanup, b) the cpen-
ing of new commercial opportunities, ¢) “ghost town” effects
reduced - as remnant buildings were removed to make way
for news jobs and housing, d) property transfers, and €) resi-
dential construction supporting the military in the Monterey
Bay Region. At the same time, due to national and regional
economic conditions several major projects are delaying con-
struction.

The munitions removal work started this past year with sev-
eral community meetings and project processing sessions
with the U.S. Army, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
and the California Department of Toxic Substances Control
As a result, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority and our team (LFR
Inc., Weston Solutions, and Westcliffe Engineers) are moving
fences, clearing vegetation, preparing required documenta-
tion, and removing remnant munitions. Early indications are
that FORA’s remediation team will complete cleanup within
the seven year projected schedule, shortening prior comple-
tion estimates by at least 50%.

During FY ‘08 there was substantial progress on the Veterans
Cemetery, the Seaside Main Gate Project, California State
University Menterey Bay construction, and the Seaside Golf
Resort Project. We anticipate that FY '09 will see a revival for
most of the projects and a rebound from the past year's eco-
nomic uncertainty




ﬁ OWM»GQMJHW......:..:.......:..::: e gnuR|Rg MC_UCMJ mm>mu.m_u._c_ !
SELIRYE'G £0/1/¢ ®>uejeg uluuidag { EEERTNIET]-] s, A10 2y jo voddns U Suisnoy a2J0pJom 1o} pIQ 304 uo ‘60, Ad Bulnp |eaoudde pue maiaal Joy pade|s st oafoud 3y
($6EZS6'Y) ' SanuaATY 18N 23eaJoe sy Zuisn uoj sue|d palsdwod pue Jead uIod 3yl - ‘peoy AIEPUNOg YINOS PUB "PA|g Q400 WIS [2J2USY JO UOIIDASIIUI 3y}
\ / Bulnp s[aa.ed Jjay) Jo siajsuel Auadoid syl 01 piemio) 1e 3a(oad [BIDIBWIWOI/BUISNOY/110S3L 2198 +(0E B Jo uSisap 10afoud pue
4 )
STLL00ers eioL ANATIIINOW IO ALID FHL e VO Add TId 40 ALID> 9HL
FEEGOE G e uonensiuiwpy/Suluuely d I i e
eLycicee vos3/L3—swalold eude) . ‘PleAIINOY SJ00W WIf [BJ2USD 4O Isea sajiadoud Joy 103f
YLy e did—spafoud |endey 64:9T TT/L0/L00T
\_ y, - - -04d Juswdojaaap e 3ulindas 4oy $$3204d Sy} unSaq sey AllD Y3 ‘UOIIPPE Ul 12IUIT) |RIDIDW
e ) ; P , B -wWoD 3jA1sap 3189 ulely syl 3uinoddde yum uorounfuod ul JeaA jeasy Sulwod 3yl ul 310y
078750’ LES SIEloL a1 404 Jupjesug-puncud saas mou Al ayl ‘aousnbasuoo e sy 10aloud 110sas 954nad Jj08 ayy
vmh\omm.m ............................. (peoy s ) S0 03 suonippe Joj suejd palajdwod osje ALD 3YL  "SIOYSIA [BUOIIEUIFIUL SAISS O} [9ISOH YINOA
R - JUBWRIU) Xey senuendY .
R saseataies puel B pue 3pIseas Jo AlD 2yt Joj S2HUNoddo [BIaISWLEICY PISERIOUl ‘SIBYI0 pue Alelljiu Byl
QOOIQLT e s $334 JUBWG0|3AaQ 40} BuISNOY 31BJ 13JEWJ PUE JIOPLOM 3Q ||IM LNSAT PUS 34| "HOND YHO4 PUB Syied 21815
(ooodoo,om... SRS _E%mu_\ ‘ALD ‘Aly paulgqwo e Joj suoizesado pue Ayunuoddo ‘Ajundes ‘ssazoe pascidwl @|qeul
- 01 a8ueyoxa Auadoud AduaSe-nynw ayi paie|dwo? CHTC | ‘
139ang 800Z-200Z A4 JAISVHS A0 ALID mli%
‘QOOZ aunf ui u1d ‘Ariadoud piQ 1o4 Jswioy 01uo papuedxa 3q ||Im ABMIDEY pue
-3q 03 P3NP3aYs S| 3UIpeld 3US 'L00T JIGWSAON Ul Sidulied Med Aluno) eaas eundeq ‘os|y "ealy Suluue|d sie|4 JdJed 2yl U1 yuswdojanap diysSey s,Auno) ay3 - 423uadd) uelisanby Asusiuoy

Ned 2140 uifw] syl 03 sj9aJed [BNPIAIPUL |95 €3 YY 04 Pamo|
-le yaiym ‘dewl uoisialpgns ayl paaoadde euliely Jo AlD 2yl
9007 Ul eulely JO AND 24l Ag paacidde pue passatold alam

2yl Joj Juswealde Juswasinguial/3ullenodau aasndxs Ue olu] pasalua AduaBy ayl siesodold om) SUIM3IAIL MOU S| pue peoy
uosLeD-31U| Buole yied |euISNpUI-[e12J3WIWOY B40.-0G B Joj suonedylienb pajios AouaBy 1uswdojaaapay s Aunod sy JesA

sjuswiaIua aloid ayl “Buipjing paynuea {,a331,) usisag Jepua|ed siy} Jaljiea YIoM BUS pUB ainjondiselll pala|dwod pue aiueisauod Auadosd panladsd siauled uosLUeD 1se] "agejia udisap
[eluswucdiaug pue ABisu3 ul diysiapea] e Buip|ing o1 pal -AG-3|qEPJOE UR JO) ABM 3XBW 0] PSACWAL 21am SZUIpjINg POOM JUBUWIAL SB PRIJIBAUCD SBM BAIY Juluue|d Uosluern 1seq ay|  Jeah
~HUWLWOD S| Jsulled 40| Yyaed 'sainieay ,usads, pue ajgeule) _

/ 1sed siy3 sisoydiowelsw [eaisAyd 1ueaiudis e iuamiapun saiziadoud pig o4 T TR ; \
-SNS 912J0dJ0dUL || Im Al][19B) 3DUSISJUOD B PUB 521440 MBU 3y L H H ! H g P P10 ATILILNOW 40 ALNMOD

‘PO W04 43WI0) BY) UO SUDIIBZIUEBIO 3A1103dS
-1 1193 3snoy o1 (,d0l,) Hed 3240 ullw ayy pajjea Ajjioey
asn julof e a1e3ud 01 (sJaulled yded 320 uilw) 3yl se Ajpuiof

" 1214181 481BAA 15807 RULIBIA] pUE Aeg ASUlUucIy NSD Ylim aSueyaxa Aladoldd [e1dljauaq Ajjleninw e pa3adwod
osje A1y ayl “iesh |eost) BulWoD Byl Ul pamausd 3q [|Im S3IN[I0.) |BIDJIWWOD [euoilppe Jo luswdojsasp

UMOW) GO9 |B307 UOIUM SJ2luddie) ayl pue 3507 [RIIUD) pue uoI1PNJISUI 1BY] 05 133foid Aeg ASuaiuo|y UO 53UNg 3yl yum suoieinoBau juedpudis yoorapun Ay
Y1 Jo 28uBYIXT SISP|ING BY} ‘SIUSWUIBA0D ealy Aeg Adl9) 8yl -syvafotd 1sa8ie| omi s) Jo} suonadwod aunjoniiselsul pue Aempeod pue augp Aemysiy Suoje [eaowal
-UDIA JO UONBI20SSY 3yl Yllm paleloge||od Sey yyO4 ‘91ed Zulp|ing |eizueIsgns mes A1) Syl ‘UoIIIPPe Ul ‘SIUSPISRJ [BJ0] IO} S3U01S J3YI0 pue ‘Ang 1539 ‘S|ycy ‘|3y ue 5

-0|24 01 uoneledsid up -19fold Juswdojsaap (38e|Ia Ajisian

UM SB umouy AjsaULI0}) Aeg ASISIUOIA UO SaUNQ Mmc_‘_ru—r dupseoq Jajuao uiddoys Aeg Asiajuoly uo saung 3yl pauado d\Z_HM_,{z n.=© ALID 9dHL .

-B|Al O AJD Y3 UIYlim PaIEI0| SI 92140 YWY O IUaand ay I - 0o - e - -

MUY 301440 NITA| S1Y0d3Y TVNOILLIIASHNS

e




arm rm a7 LR TR

ORA is committed 1o 3
basewide Habitat Conserva-
sion Plan (“HCP”) to ensure preser-
vation of two-thirds of the 28,000-
acre former base as open space of
habitat lands. Over the past thir-
teen years, FORA has worked with
federal, state and local resource and habitat management
agencies to develop a basewide HCP. In January 2007, FORA’S
HCP consuitant completed and submitted an administrative
draft HCP for coordinated review. FORA’s legislative represen-
tatives met with key leaders in U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
(“USFWS”) and California Department of Fish and Game
(“CDFG") to confirm commitments to a final process leading to
HCP approval. These offorts will result in HCP approval in

2009.

Jones & Stokes, FORA’s HCP Consultant, is leading the effort to
address all USFWS and CDFG draft HCP comments by revising
draft HCP chapters and the draft implementing Agreement.
Denise Duffy & Associates, FORA’s environmental consultant,
will complete the California Environmental Quality Act and
federal National Environmental Policy Act compliance docu-
ments for the HCP. As 3 part of this work, FORA anticipates
public review of the HCP during the coming year. FORA has,
and will continue, to set aside millions of developer fee doilars
to fund habitat management responsibilities under the HCP.

FORA’s current objective is to
set aside developer fees over
the next few years, adjusting
the final number as HCP habi-
tat management cost esti-
mates are refined. In these
ways, FORA and the habitat
recipients will ensure that ap-
propriate resources are secure
habitat for many years to come!

d to protect former Fort Ord

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

he Environmental Services

Cooperative Agreement
(“ESCA") between the U.S. Army
and FORA provides $100 Million
to FORA to remediate Munitions
— e and  Explosives of Concern
(“MEC”} on all remaining former Fort Ord Economic Devel-
opment Conveyance properties {3,400 acres). This U.S
>_,3,.\ .mﬁm:.ﬁ is guaranteed to be sufficient for the 3,400 mn.ﬁm.
munitions cleanup by an AlG insurance policy.

anmﬂ the terms of the grant, FORA entered into a contract
with LFR, inc. to perform the MEC removal and regulato
n.o.,:_u:msnm requirements. The U.S. Environmental ?oﬁmN
tion Agency and the California Department of Toxic Sub-
stances Control require FORA/LFR, Inc. to meet the same
standards for MEC as the U.S. Army. The related agree-
ments also enable property transfers from the Army to
FORA. The MEC removal will take about seven years, much
less than anticipated under the former program. Oh\m_. the
past year, FORA’s ESCA team remediated MEC Special Case
?mmm and cleared roadway areas in the Seaside 1-4 parcels
_c.mﬁ.mmmﬂ of General Jim Moore Boulevard. The ESCA Reme-
diation Team has been involved in more than 230 public
outreach activities ranging from feature articles, newslet-
ters, and community organization one-on-one BMmH.Smm te
public  orientation  sessions/
workshops to keep the public up-
to-date on the ESCA documenta-
tion and fieldwork. The ESCA
MEC field work will move into
the future Veterans Cemetery/
Parker Flats area in the Fall of
2008.




__FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT
.+ EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S RI RS
Fort Ord Reuse Authority Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal
Year 2008/09 — 2021/22; Distribution of Final Approved Document

Meeting Date: July 11, 2008
Agenda Number: 8c INFORMATION

Subject:

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive the final approved Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2008/09 — 2021/22 Fort Ord Reuse
Authority (“FORA") Capital Improvement Program (“CIP")y document.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

At the June 13, 2008 meeting, the FORA Board of Directors approved the FY 2008/09 -
2021/22 FORA CIP document. That approved document, including the minor
adjustments made by the Board on June 13, is enclosed for your files and reference
use during the coming year. The CIP document incorporates updates from the former
Fort Ord land use jurisdictions and state agencies to provide a comprehensive overview
of development projections and upcoming infrastructure and habitat mitigation work to
support reuse programs.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller . ?;%% /B,

Funding for the oversight, development, and printing of this CIP document was included
in the FY 2007-2008 FORA Annual Budget.

COORDINATION:

Land use jurisdiction staff, developer representatives, Administrative Committee, CIP
Committee, Finance Committee, Executive Committee

Prepared b)é\ﬂv\/ww Apyiréved by

“Crissy Maras Michae! A. Holilemard, Jr.




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT
© EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Capita! Improvement Program for Fiscal
Year 2008/09 — 2021/22; Distribution of Final Approved Document
Meeting Date: July 11, 2008

Agenda Number: 8c INFORMATION

Subject:

As noted in the item 8c staff report of the July 11, 2008 Fort Ord Reuse Authority
(“FORA") Board of Directors meeting, the FORA Board approved Capital Improvement
Program (“CIP) for FY 2008/09 — 2021/22 is being distributed to FORA Board and Ex-
Officio Members.

For others receiving FORA Board packets, the final CIP document may be viewed

online at www.fora.org or purchased from FORA for a reproduction cost of $15.00.
Please contact Crissy Maras, FORA Administrative Coordinator, for information.

Prepared bMMﬁM roved by

Crissy Maras Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.




Capital Improvement Program
FY 2008/2009 through 2021,/2022

Fort Ord Reuse Authority
100 12th Street, Bldg. 2880
Marina, CA 93933

www.fora.org

FORA Board Approved June 13, 2008

-~



Capital Improvement Program
FY 2008,/2009 through 2021,/2022

Fort Ord Reuse Authority
100 12th Street, Bldg. 2880
Marina, CA 93933

www.fora.org




Capital Improvement Program
FY 2008/2009 through 2021,/2022

Fort Ord Reuse Authority
[00 12th Street, Bldg. 2880
Marina, CA 93933

www.fora.org




TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION
I, EXECUTIVE SUMMARY....ociserseirvrrerseenemnnnsseessessesessssssernanannnansssnsansessesnanssssissssassassarnansnssssones
II.  OBLIGATORY PROGRAM OF PROJECTS — DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

lilo

FLEMENTS e e ves ves e san sne eussssisansrsessraresnsesasesmsanssssssssssseneniniatartotsssssrssnmasnsnnsasnassansnsanes
2. TRANSPORTATION/TRANSIT PROJECTS..cuveererieeereeenuieeaeeserersrsereeeaeeesaesemeemiesemnnesracasrsssanesrns
FIGURE | — TRANSPORTATION MAP..oeiitiiiieitieeicteeee v eee e s e et na s s
B, WATER AUGMENTATION. .oveeetversrecreeareerneereeasueessnnsesseesssesseennnesnresssoasansinessissassnessressneeas
C. STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM PROJECTS..eiriiiirreieeeeeeereeneerneeecesinnr s r e e ae e ern
d. HABITAT MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS..eveerreeererenssrerauenessereuresanesemssnesvanesruassnessaasesssesnnas
e. FIRE FIGHTING ENHANCEMENT REQUIREMENTS..ociieriiiieeeriirnenecneec s e nreene s e ae s s sanaan
[, BUILDING REMOVAL PROGRAN......eeiiiereeirieeitieeiannreennraesnrensneesaesenesanmeoesmenesessssseiess e sas
g. WATER AND WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEMS.....cocimniniinnniciriniirni s
FY 200872009 tHROUGH 2021/2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM....cccormmmeinvsenrsrissunenssannns
TABLE | — CIP OBLIGATORY PROJECT OFFSETS AND REMAINING OBLIGATIONS........occooinnnine
TABLE 2 — TRANSPORTATION NETWORK AND TRANSIT ELEMENTS....oocviiiiiiiiiiniiiiin e,
TABLE 3 — OVERALL CIP SUMMARY SPREADSHEET.....oiieiieiiiiriiiiine e s

TABLE 3 — FOOTNOTES ... oo it e e i v e e

APPENDICES
PROTOCOL FOR REYIEW/REPROGRAMMING OF FORA CIP...corereicriiiiiininreneenninesreinssnene s
TABLE 4 — COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT REVENUE AND LAND SALES REVERUE.......cocovrsrvenniianinnns
MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY PROGRAM ... cceieevns it vt ons e vnve et mn et en en avains

TABLE S — DEVELOPER FEE ALLOCATION AGAINST OBLIGATIONS..coveiieiiiiiiiiciircciirienrennnennrianieaiaens



l. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

) Overview

This Fort Ord Reuse Authority (“FORA”) Capital Improvement Program (“CIP”) is responsive to the capital improvement obligations
defined under the Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan (“BRP”) as adopted by the FORA Board in fune 1997. The BRP carries a series of
mitigative project obligations defined in Appendix B of that plan as the Public Facilities Implementation Plan (“PFIP"). The PFIP,
which serves as the haseline CIP for the reuse plan, is re-visited annually by the FORA Board to assure that required projects are
implemented in a timely way to meet development needs. The PFIP was developed as a capital improvement program spanning a
twenty-year development horizon (1996-2015) and was based upon the best at-the-time forecasts of expected development.

The current CIP document (FY 2008/09 — FY 2021/22) has been updated with the most current forecasts of development
anticipated by the FORA land use jurisdictions. The new forecasts are enumerated in the (IP Appendix B, Table 4. Based upon
this updated information, capital project “placement in time” has been compared with last year's programming, with minor
adjustments having been made. The reader’s attention is directed to Tables 2 and 3, wherein obligatory CIP projects are currently
forecast.

It is noted that FORA is scheduled, by State law, to sunset in 2014 {or when 80% of the BRP has been implemented, whichever
occurs first), which will occur prior to the end of this CIP time horizon (FY 2008/09 — FY 2021/22). Therefore, the revenues and
obligations herein will be allocated accordingly to jurisdictions under the Local Agency Formation Commission process for the
dissolution of FORA.

2) Periodic CIP Review and Reprogramming

Due to the nature of development foracasting, it is certain that today's best forecasts of development timing and patterns will differ
from reality. Recognizing this, the BRP requires the FORA Board to periodically review and revise its CIP to reflect development
realities to assure that the adopted mitigation projects are implemented in the best possible sequence with development needs. A
protocol for the review and reprogramming of the CIP was approved by the FORA Board on June 8, 2001. Appendix A, herein,
defines the process whereby FORA and its Member Agencies comprehensively review development timing and patterns to assure
proper implementation of the BRP mitigation projects. The Board is asked to approve this CIP (FY 2008/09 - FY 2021/22) as
revised, via the review protocol. That approval will affirm project priorities of the CIP.

3) CIP Costs

The costs assigned to the various elements of the CIP were originally estimated in May 1995 and published in the draft 1996 BRP.
This current CIP has inflated costs to January 2008, applying the Engineering News Record (“ENR”) Construction Cost Index (“CCF)
to account for inflation. This continues to be a routine procedure each year.

4) CIP Revenues

The primary sources of revenue anticipated to cover the costs of obligatory CIP projects are developer fees and land sale (and lease)
proceeds. These primary sources can be augmented by tax increment revenue. The current FORA developer fee policy has been
structured to accommodate CIP costs of Transportation/Transit projects, Habitat Management obligations, Water Augmentation, Storm
Drainage System improvements and Fire Fighting Enhancement improvements. The developer fee policy adopted by the Board in
1999 was implemented by the formation of the FORA Basewide Community Facilities District (“CFD"). The CFD is structured to

2



allow annual inflation adjustments to account for cost escalation, with an annual cap of 5%. Land sale (and lease} proceeds are
earmarked to cover costs associated with the Building Removal Program.

Appendix B herein contains a tabulation of the proposed developments with their corresponding fee and land sale revenue forecasts.
Obligatory capital project costs are balanced against the forecasted revenues as depicted in Table 3 of this document.

5) Projects Accomplished to Date

FORA has been actively implementing capital improvement projects since 1995. As of this writing, FORA has successfully advanced
approximately $53.8M in capital improvements, predominantly funded by FORA CFD fees, grants received from the US Department of
Commerce, Economic Development Administration (“EDA”) and a FORA bond issue. $46.8M was applied directly against FORA
obligations and $7M funded capital improvements instrumental to base reuse, such as improvements to the water and wastewater
systems. In addition to the $53.8M in capital improvements, $5.6M has been expended against habitat, fire fighting enhancement
and water augmentation obligations.

Section Il herein provides additional detail regarding how a number of already-funded projects have been credited as offsets against
the FORA basewide obligations. The sources of funds utilized to date include grants, FORA Member contributions, FORA bond
proceeds and developer fees. As developer fees, land sale proceeds and other revenues are coflected and employed to offset
obligations, use of these funds will continue to be enumerated in Table | as obligation offsets.

IIl. OBLIGATORY PROGRAM OF PROJECTS — DESCRIPTION OF CIP ELEMENTS

As noted in the Fxecutive Summary, the obligatory elements of the BRP CIP include Transportation/Transit, Water Augmentation,
Storm Drainage, Habitat Management, Fire Fighting Enhancement and Building Removal. The first five elements noted are to be
funded by developer fees. land sale {and lease) proceeds are earmarked to fund the Building Removal Program. Summary
descriptions of each element of the BRP CIP follow.

a) Transportation/Transit Elements

Transportation

During the preparation of the BRP and the associated Final Environmental Impact Report
{“FEIR”), the Transportation Agency for Monterey County (“TAMC") undertook a regional
study (The Fort Ord Regional Transportation Study, July 1997) to assess Fort Ord
development impacts on the study area (North Monterey County) transportation network.
When the BRP and accompanying FEIR were adopted by the Board, the transportation
and transit obligations as defined by the TAMC Study were also adopted as mitigations to
the development under the BRP.  The FORA Board subsequently included the
Transportation/Transit element (obligation) as a requisite cost component of the adopted = 5o/ itection with | Jim Moore
{FD. Boulevard — Phase Ili

As implementation of the BRP continued, it became timely to coordinate with TAMC for a review and reallocation of the FORA
financial contributions that appear on the fist of transportation projects for which FORA has an obligation.

Toward that goal and following Board action directing staff to coordinate a work program with TAMC, FORA and TAMC entered into
a cooperative agreement to move forward with the re-evaluation work. TAMC, working in concert with the Association of Monterey

3



Bay Area Governments (“AMBAG™), has since completed its work program with FORA. TAMC's recommendations are enumerated in
the “FORA Fee Reallocation Study” dated April 8, 2005; the date the FORA Board of Directors approved the study for inclusion in
the FORA CIP. The complete study can be found online at www.fora.org, under the Documents menu.

FORA's worle with TAMC and AMBAG has resulted in the refined list of FORA transportation obligations that are synchronous with the
TAMC Regional Transportation Plan (“RTP). Figure | illustrates the refined FORA transportation obligations that are further defined

in Table I.
Transit

The transit obligations enumerated in Table | herein remain unchanged from the 1997 TAMC Study and adopted BRP. However, it
is noted that current long range planning by TAMC and Monterey-Salinas Transit (“HST") reflect an alternative route to the multi-
modal corridor than denoted in the BRP. The BRP currently provides for a multi-modal corridor along the fmjin Parkway/Blanco
Road corridor serving to and from the Salinas area to the TAMC/MST intermodal center planned in the Dunes on Monterey Bay area
in the City of Marina portion of the former Fort Ord.

Current long range planning for transit service focuses on the alternative Intergarrison/Reservation/Davis Roads corridor to fulfil
transit service needs between the Salinas area and the proposed intermodal center in the Dunes on Monterey Bay area.

A series of stakeholder meetings have been conducted to advance adjustments and refinements to the proposed multi-modal corridor
plan-line.  Stakeholders include, but are not limited to, TAMC, MST, FORA, C(ity of Marina, Monterey County, California State
University Monterey Bay (“CSUMB”), University of California Monterey Bay Education, Science and Technology Center (“UCMBEST”) and
Golden Gate University (“GGU™).  Ultimately, agreements among the stakeholders will be advanced to the policy level for
consideration and endorsement for any adjustments that may be made to the multi-modal corridor in the BRP.

Lead Agency Status

FORA has served as lead agency in accomplishing the design, environmental approval and construction activities for all capital
improvements considered as basewide obligations under the BRP and this CIP. As land transfers continue and development gains
momentum, certain basewide capital improvements will be advanced by the land use jurisdictions and/or their developers.

fs of this writing, reimbursement agreements are in place with Monterey County and the City of Marina for several requisite
transportation projects. Other like agreements will be structured as development projects are implemented and those agreements
will be noted for the record herein.



o

0LL{ [BUORRIBSD B9 AMH

PH AlRpUnag UInes

s L S0 0 \ . . /;\AJ

ha
L /. -
BPUNOG WINOS Of BINDRW,
wir |BJBLES)
sy,
B0jEBRS - ApT) UBS
Buiuspim | Avd
(S1M2Q) 91 O1RD) SUINIBAY) ;
LoyEAIBESY ) QINIZA O APUBULGN
W ReUeD
03U8|g O LINog) .
Py BiABQ [Pt epmseal, 31 P ABmiuon
. Py Buliti
WS W]
[ejBS) BUREAA Of OB
UORRAIETEY
A JOTDRLUDD DUB! Ly
’ vosyetiagu) . B ENCIE
4 EET
By 10808

Bupopun 061 AvH




b) Water Augmentation

The BRP identifies availability of water as its primary resource constraint. The density of development anticipated by the BRP
utilizes the total available groundwater supply of 6,600 acre-feet per year (“AFY"), as described in the BRP, Appendix B (PFIP
section p 3-63). In addition to the groundwater supply, the adopted BRP requires an augmentation of an estimated 2,400 AFY to
achieve the development level permitted by the BRP. This is reflected and summarized within the BRP, Volume 3, in figure PFIP 2-

1.

FORA worked with Marina Coast Water District (“MCWD") to implement the most appropriate water augmentation program with
which to proceed. Following a comprehensive two-year process of evaluating potential viable options for a water augmentation
program, the MCWD Board of Directors certified, in October 2004, a program level Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”) that
analyzed three potential augmentation projects. The projects included 2 desalination project, a recycled water project and a hybrid
project (containing components of both recycled water and desalination water projects). The EIR is available for review on the
Internet at www.mewd.org (under the Engineering tab).

In June 2005, MCWD staff and consultants, working in concert with the FORA staff and Administrative Committee, recommended the
hybrid project to the FORA and MCWD Boards of Directors. Additionally, FORA staff recommended increasing the CIP earmark for
the water augmentation program from its then indexed value of approximately $20M to approximately $37M, which essentially
removed $174 from the MCWD capital improvement program.

Several factors over the last year have caused reconsideration of the water augmentation program by staff and consultants. Those
factors include increased project costs as designs have been refined; difficulties in MCWD and the Monterey Regional Water Pollution
Control Agency (“MRWPCA”) being able to come to terms in an agreement between the parties that would effect moving forward
with the recycled component of the project (which was to have been on line by summer 2008), and the significant economic
downturn, which allows for more time before the augmentation program would need to come on line. All of which have had the
net effect of providing the opportunity to give serious consideration to what is currently being called the “Regional Plan.”
Appendix C herein provides a description of the Regional Plan from which the augmenting source of water for the former Fort Ord
could be derived. During the course of the 2008/09 fiscal year, staff will be providing periodic reports to the Administrative and
Water/Wastewater Oversight Committees on progress for an appropriate augmentation program. It is anticipated that
recommendations for the most appropriate augmentation program will be forthcoming in the late winter/early spring of 2009.

c) Storm Drainage System Projects

The adopted BRP recognized the need to eliminate the discharge of storm water runoff from the former Fort Ord to the Monterey
Bay National Marine Sanctuary (“Sanctuary”). In addition, the BRP FEIR specifically addressed the need to remove the four storm
water outfalls that discharged storm water runoff to the Sanctuary.

Section 4.5 of the FEIR, Hydrology and Water Quality, contains the following obligatory Conservation Element Program:
“Rydrology and Water Quality Policy, C-6: In support of Monterey Bay’s National Marine Sanctuary designation, the
Gity/County shall sypport all actions required to ensure that the bay and inter-tidal environment will not be
adversely affected, even if such actions should exceed state and federal water quality requirements.”

“Program C6.1: The Giy/County shall work dosely with other fort Ord jurisdictions and the (California
Department of Parks and Recreation) to develop and implement 2 plan for storm water disposal that will allow for
the removal of the ocean outhll structures and end the direct discharge of storm water into the marine



environment.  The program must be consistent with State Park goals to maintan the open space character of the
dunes, restore natural land forms and restore habitat valves.”

With these programs/poficies in mind, FORA and the City of Seaside, as co-applicants, secured EDA Grants to advance the design
and construction of alternative disposal (retention) systems for storm water runoff that allowed for the removal of the outfalls.
FORA advanced to the construction and demolition project, with the work having been completed as of January 2004. Table 3
herein therefore reflects this obligation as having been met.

Storm Drain Site — Before and After

d) Habitat Management Requirements

Appendix A, Volume 2 of the BRP contains the Habitat Management Program (“HMP”) Implementation Management Agreement. This
Management Agreement defines the respective rights and obligations of FORA, its Member Agencies, California State University and
the University of California with respect to the implementation of the HMP.

Subject to final approval by the U.S, Fish and Wildlife Service (“USFWS”) and the California Department of Fish and Game (“(DFG"),
FORA's Habitat Management funding obligations were previously listed in the following form:

l. A $1.5M upfront funding (comprised of $4.3M in borrowed funds and $200K in secured funds) for initial management,
planning and capital costs, serves as a down payment on an endowment fund, the earnings on which will allow for
required habitat management activities on the habitat parcels that have already transferred.

2, Mdditionally, as development has taken place and developer fees paid, $! out of every $4 collected have been
earmarked to build a total endowment of principal funds necessary to produce an annual income sufficient to carry out
required habitat management responsibilities in perpetuity. The original estimate was developed by an independent
consultant retained by FORA and totaled $6.3M.

The financing plan is predicated on an earnings rate assumption acceptable to USFWS and (DFG for endowments of this kind, and
economies of scale provided by unified management of FORA’s habitat lands by qualified non-profit habitat managers. FORA will be
securing the services of the appropriately experienced habitat manager(s) via a formal selection process.

It is noted that FORA will not control expenditure of the annual line items, but merely fund the endowment, and the iniial and
capital costs, to the agreed upon levels,



Based upon recent conversations with the regulatory agencies, it has become apparent that the Habitat Management obligations will
fikely increase beyond the costs noted above. Therefore, this document contains a x $13M line item of forecasted requisite
expenditures. USFWS and (DFG are the final ariters as to what the final endowment amount will be, with input from FORA and
its contractors/consultants. It is expected that the final endowment amount wifl be agreed upon in the upcoming fiscal year.

e) Fire Fighting Enhancement Requirements

in july 2003, the FORA Board authorized FORA to lease-purchase five
pieces of fire fighting equipment, including four fire engines and one water
tender. The equipment recipients include the (ities of Marina, Monterey
and Seaside, the Ord Military Community Fire Department and the Salinas
Rural Fire Department.

This lease purchasing of equipment accommodates FORA's capital
obligations under the BRP to enhance the fire fighting capabilities on the
former Fort Ord in response to the proposed development, The lease A
payments began July 2004, and are projected to be paid through 2013/14. Fire engines received by Fire Departments in the Cities of
Once the lease payments, funded by developer fees, have been satisfied, Marina, Monterey and Seaside and the Ord Military

FORA's obligation for fire fighting enhancement will have been fully met. Community were "ﬁ"z;d d‘f'i“fmt:;e Parker Flats habitat
urer m

f) Building Removal Program

The BRP includes, as a basewide obligation, the removal of non-usable building stock to make way for redevelopment in certain
portions of the former Fort Ord. Building removal is funded from land sale revenves and/or credited against land sale valuation.
Two Memorandums of Agreement (“MOA”) have been finalized for these purposes, as described below.

In August 2005 FORA entered into an HOA with the (ity of Marina Redevelopment Agency and Marina Community Partners {"M(P”),
which assigned FORA $46M in building removal costs within the Dunes on Monterey Bay project area and assigned M(P the
responsibifity for the actual removal. FORA has paid $22M and MCP is to receive credits of $24M for building removal cost against
FORA's portion of the land sale proceeds. Building removal at the Dunes site is scheduled to be complete in 2010. Additionally, in
February 2006 FORA entered into an MOA with Monterey County, the Montersy County Redevelopment Agency and Fast Garrison
Partners (“EGP”). In this HOA, EGP agreed to undertake FORA's responsibility for removal of certain buildings in the East Garrison
specific plan area. In return, EGP will receive a credit of $2,177,008 for East Gamison building removal against FORK's portion of
the land sale proceeds for the East Gamison project, which FORA expects to receive in FY 2011/2012. EGP completed partial
building removal in 2007, with remaining buildings scheduled for removal by March 2009.

In both of these agreements, the hierarchy of building reuse is observed, which is the FORA Board policy that prioritizes the most
efficient reuse of obsolete buildings by focusing on the concepts of renovation and reuse in place; relocation and renovation;
deconstruction and reuse of building materials; and, mechanical demolition with aggressive recycling.

FORAs remaining building removal obligations include the former Fort Ord stockade within the City of Marina (+ $2.2M} and
buildings in the City of Seaside’s Surplus I area (+ $4M). FORA will continue to work closely with the Cities of Marina and

Seaside to keep opportunities for development open as new specific plans are prepared for those areas.

Revenue and expenditure details are included in Table 3 of this document.



g Water and Wastewater Collection Systems

Following a competitive selection process in 1997, the FORA Board approved MCWD as the purveyor to own and operate the water
and wastewater collection systems on the former Fort Ord. By agreement with FORA, MCWD is tasked to assure that a Water and
Wastewater Collection Systems Capital Improvement Program is in place and implemented to accommodate repair, replacement and
expansion of the systems. To provide uninterrupted service to existing customers and to track with system expansion to keep pace
with proposed development, MCWD and FORA staff continue to coordinate system(s) needs with respect to anticipated development.

MCWD is fully engaged in the FORA CIP process, and adjusts its program for the noted systems to be coincident with the FORA CIP.

The FORA Board, by its action in 1997, also established a Water and Wastewater Oversight Committee (“WWOC™), which serves in
an advisory capadity to the Board. A primary function of the WWOC is to meet and confer with MCWD staff in the development
of operating and capital budgets and the corresponding customer rate structures. Annually at budget time, the WWOC and FORA
staff prepare recommended actions for the Board’s consideration with respect to budget and rate approvals. This process provides
the proper tracking mechanism to assure that improvements to, and expansion of, the systems are in sequence with development
needs on the former Fort Ord.

Capital improvements for system{s) operations and improvements are funded by customer rates, fees and charges. The capital
improvements for the system(s) are approved on an annual basis by the MCWD Board and the FORA Board as outlined above.
Therefore, the water and wastewater capital improvements are not duplicated in this document.

. FY 2008709 THROUGH 2021/22 CAPITAL INPROYEMENT PROGRAM

a) Background Information/Summary Tables

This Section HI provides summary tables of the FORA obligations under the BRP. More particularly, Table 1, entitled “CIP Obligatory
Offsets” graphically depicts the current fiscal offsets of completed projects that have reduced the BRP obligations.

Since 1995, FORA has advanced approximately $59.4M in capital projects and BRP obligations. These projects have been funded
predominantly by EDA grants, bond proceeds and developer fees. The developer fees now being collected are transitioning to the
forefront as the primary funding source for FORA to continue meeting its mitigation obfigations under the BRP. Table I includes
fiscal offsets inclusive of not only completed projects, but also funded projects to-be-completed during the course of the next fiscal
year. The Table | footnotes detail the source of funds (e.g. grants, developer fees) that have been secured to enable project
implementation and offsetting of costs.

As previously noted, the work concluded by TAMC and AMBAG has resulted in modifications of the transportation obligations, for
consistency with current transportation planning at the regional level. Table 2 details the current TAMC recommendations that are
compatible with the RTP, and “time places” the obligations over the CIP time horizon.

A summary of the CIP project elements and their forecasted costs and revenues are presented in Table 3. Annual updates of the
(IP will continue to contain like summaries and will account for funding received and applied against required projects.



0} obey

L 37avL mmv.mwh 9% ALVA 0L S103rodd IDVNIYEA WHOLS ONY LISNYHLUNOILY.LMOdSNYHL LISNIYDY §135440 JAILYINNND TY.LOL
156'189' spascaud JueJB (13 A9 papung "#00Z Ul 19w Lopediiqo eroueuy/palaidwed joslolg “Aenjoues Aeg Aassluoy o} JEIBMULONS J0 2BIBYSIP SRUILIP IBlEMULC]S BIB[00BH/LIBIaY
waysAs abeulesg wiols 7
eF9'SETTE 583} Justudoarap ‘speenaid puoq snuasa) ‘spuny Bulynew eoo] pue s1E)s *spury Juesb y3 AQ papuny "pO0Z-CE6] WOY ADNIS DAY GAGL J20 HOMIBU ISUEILONENOASUEY) f0) SUOIEDIGC SUIEBE S1BS)C <mo“__
5661 ApMS JWVL - ljsueitjuopeodsuea] ")
Pa0Z - S66 1 $I195110 Snolaaag
sse'ovp'iel | 668'6S8°Z1 |zuz'sie’sL | 299'GZo'ses | $|ejoL Jsuel |juonepodsuel | |
i£6'268'7) s6'6Lz 926'F80°41 000'008'8) S[e10] ysuel}
398219 £/9'08¢'y 500’008 BuilBisy pure 12248 "ig © Alwe4 sprd pUe iied "¢ pue ‘Uil pUE el Wz) © AIlDed 3y 1015 [EPOLLBIY| @l
pue jied ‘7 19913 "Uig 10 YOS snuaAy 18| © Sy ueyenadsuel) [epouseiul || sjuswala ¢ sapmou (18-1 didd)
780'GLLL 056'8:Z VSZ'86Z°0 000'000'S4 $885nq G} Bae|den/eseyINd 9ol Yisuel) £l
"80UBJES|T {BIUBWILOAAUSEYGEY PUE SPUN) SGBIIEAE UO PSSE] SIUBWIRIGP 17 31Ny Ul paseyd 5q ABw UoNarsuoD Buliewiay i)
6LY'E64°801 Br6's.5'Th | esz0gevoL | sewszEie | sejo] uojepodsues j |
20ELEE eve'5isTh  |e1s'g0'en 616'9E0°E9 AUS-UO [et0igng
308'2rs'e 0¥z 8% ¥90'5L5°Z $90'G18'T P 3o, 01 pAIg 3100 wir jelsuss) oy Jusiuble Bugsixe Buope ‘euspe aue| 7 e o) apeshdny apesBidn peoy Arepunog § 104
BOK'0/8'Y) 0LE'9EG'ZL 048'965'2L J(J 13A0LDOYRS O] HO-INO Sjejd JONIE 0} Py SMAAIEONT WOL [EUSHIE SUR] 7 MaU 1NASU0D {awubie map} py episisesy 8E104
300°SLL'9 06969 000°008's 000'008's H0-In0 SJE( JSNIEJ Ol P BPISISET 0) A 100} WLIP [BIBLIST) WOY I0J03||00 BUE|  Of 8peIDd() py snydAieong Z10d
196'809'¢ 92'880'e 8/T'8E0'E 10 SUR)Y 0} AUSN0s Py UOKEAIZSEY WOY [EULIE DUB] 7 MBU JINRSUC) aAY SEUIRS 104
SF'ELO'GB0'SH 099°506 P AlEpUNOg INOS 0} 807 0fS WOY SAUE] § 0} 7 WO USPI faepunog § 0} 807 O/SPAG NFD 0604
- SLHal0'y 000'580'+ 000'690'+2 307) 0} 2UN[JI WOy §BuUe) § 0] 7 Lol USpIa 807 072 o) asnpyop ospag wro| (1 (-ud) 8604
- F0E'90E'9 3N} 0) PY APUBLION WOY $3UE| { O] Z LIOJ} USPIAY 239K 0) APUBLLON-DNE WMD) (I-ud) 8604
947'60F'9 08889 0P9TTL'S 0p9'224'S Py 8pisised 0} AI31Sea PAIQ 2J00} WIF [E19USE) WOY |BUSYE BUE|-7 MaU Jon]SuoD/apeIidn Bunbioy 104
EGL'ES0'S 000'09Z'7 000082y uofeAasaY 0} P SpISISET WoY [PUSYIE UBt B o) apeifidn uosLLEBe] 904
BHO'SYL'S 000°07E"7 000°0bE ¥ Py UoslLeRisiu) o) Ay 7 WOl [BUSLE SUEI-Z MoU 1onASLCo/apesBan eeus uig 504
065006 BOC'6S. 69565, UOISURIX2 UN0) JUB0saIY) UM LONASSISIUI o} APSISES BAY PUZ YIIM LORDSSISIUI LY [EUSLE SUBKZ MaU B J3A1SLOD SWeigy 04
AN0IAL[ 3 0
386'550°6) - Sro'gen'st BYE'TLE T 3)IS-YO |E0Jgng
608'520') 8Y6°906 8+6°908 (z0d) 10 sw2iqy pesodord upl 6 ApaLanog pRog 1edsa1) bunsixe puaixg SWEY 0] PUSJXa any JUsIsa) 8
896'829'2 LZE'012'Z 000'005'S P SIAEQ 0] 8)BT) SUIMIEAA WOY SSUE| § 0] USPIM SIAE(] 0} DM 'UDHIBIISSY UBDIM 3r
PLO'PZS Y 916'c18'e 00000101 ajes) SURIRM O} S1ES) UOSILIES) BT udioas BUB) i BUSIX® W04 S5UEt & ©] UapIA M 0} SOUE] -UONRAIBSSY LBDIAY ar
088’5920 Z0S'¥59'8 000°655'22 1aARy SELNES JaA0 aBpUq BUB| { Pjing ‘UOREASSSY O] COUBIH WOY S3LE| § 0) USPIM cougig Ofs Py S gz
Lre'1eg 866905 000°15L' oouelg o] Bplq £8|, WS SLY oy SIue) § O} Uspi 0OUE[g Ofu P SIAEQ L
awaAoId| US40
0b0‘294'62 " ZZLB0'sT 000'926°042 |euoiboy [Ejolqng
20£'582 09982z 000'9,8' Buiwg jubis paroJdwl] — sjuewenoudu) feuoliesed g3 AnH zy
pue saue| wm yeo| Buipnpul eul] aQ [BUOD 1B PUB 3pEI) S9RINET 'ociueuag ueg Je suswasoxdu puonelsdn
A rAR 691'760'2 000'000'251 Q1 PUE GGL SN 18 pSpsaU Se uofeayipow apeifidn Aemaaigog) Amy [A37]
pbueyomiy -sebueyasel sleudoidde wm snigjs Aemaay of Aemyfly apeifdn pue ssue| ¢ o) Aemybly Bunsixe uapyy
68¢°1967 BP9'06Y 000'001 6L Peoy Aa1a)UO Je 3DUBLDIS]LE MaU PNSUO] aBugyisius “py AUBUON-| AMH 0y
985'/ZL'8L SHZT82'SL 000'000'SH abueyausyu| sjucy 180 aup 01 ynos SbueyaIaiy| anuaAY JUOWAIH WOY SAUE] g 0; S3UE| Wy | AemyBiy Uapia, A1) pues spiseag-| Ay Y
pajepu) uonebngo 8002-6002 NOELHOd Yu04 _ 1809 7vV10L
Bulureway vjo4 | s19s0 vH04 | 5002 Apmyg uonesoiesy oiyL spwr yaloid a1 yoafoid # yaaloud

SNOILVIOITHO 9ONINIVNIY ANV SLIS440 L33r0Hd AHOLYOITHO - NVHOS0Ud LNIJWIAOULW] TYLIdVD



L1 sbed

Z31gvl
ase‘orvlel | - - - - - - - - - FL2'829'31 | 159°999° Y | SZL'90V'LE | 688'GL9'F) | £28'8L0'G STVY101 GNVYD
Jsuel] pue uoneuocdsues |
6£6'268'21
626'758'Z - - - - - - - - - 87199y Esrly QIv'ielT 8890L'} - ysuel] fejoyng
688'119's I8 ILT S00°EE8' L LOE'602°) S00'B8Y sipuey lepousaqyy|  ZTL
¥60'sLL'L GORELLT IPE'ale'? G/1'825°) ¥89'919 2IB[dan/E5RLAING APIUBA IISUEI]L €1
STVIOL  [220Z-1L20Z|1202-020Z [020Z-5L07 [61L02-8L02 |3L0Z-210Z |ZL0Z-9L0Z |910T-CL0Z |SLOZ-PLOZ |¥ROZ-SLOT| E£LOZ-ZLOZ ZL0Z-H0Z b20Z-040Z 0102-6002 600Z-8002 uopduasag #loiy
wEmEm_;En.E_ _mu_nmo hsuedt
0ZY'£65'90}
61°565'201 - - . - - - - - - ZHE'LI8'EL Q0£'215°e 669'999'8Z HOZ'HIGEY £18'8.0'6 sjejo] ucijeHodsuel]
bV OEL'BS - - - - - - - - - - IS1'191'0Z gr9'6v6'sL SIS VLT £90'99¥'8 Sjig-uQ [ejolgng
SOSTVET G05'Z¥5'T apelbidn peoy Aepunog yinog| IO
29¥'0.8'%1 86157801 8L HL'E 160'8.2'} {uswubye map) py spisise | €104
800'CLL'9 00'ELLE 000'000°E py smdeong| 2104
196'209'e ZLr'I8E'T 185°184 ¥5L608 10E'8EL any seureg) LEOA
£10°680'G) CL 'Y 000'056'¢ 000'888'¥ pug wro| 9604
9.Z'60F'9 9/2°60%'9 Buybin) £0d
£51'250°G Oy 1PE'E £42'9.10°1 GLETEY ¥81'55¢ uoswefisju)| 904
gr0'syL's SIZ0IFE 757°980°1 S0V Tr¥ Br8'261 ays g S04
086'006 £58°989 188'L6} 88 2L Z0R'PE sweiqyf 204
$TVIOL  |Z202-1z02 [5202-020Z [0202-6502 [61.02-81.02 [B1.02-2 LOZ | £40Z-9L02 [910T-510Z [SL0Z-FL0Z |FL0Z-EL0Z|  £502-ZI02 Z10Z-b40Z LH0Z-0108 0}0Z-600Z 6002-8002 uogduasag #oud
sjusanoIdw)] ARS-UD
686°G60°6} - - - - - - - - - - 065°0PL'CL WLBLEE 879'E9E"} 028219 a)S-HO [ejoing
608'60' 099214 (EL'62C ¥o¥'2H Y88 Ly SWIBIQY 0) pUS)Xs 9AY Juadsal) 8
696'829°C £96'829'Z SIABQ 0] DM ‘UOIBAISSSY USPIA ELs
PLOVESY £68'966'C GP5'T6 LE8'58E Syivl) O 0] S3UB] p-UOGEAINSEY UBPY ar
058's9z'0) 128'008'9 93F'984°Z AN AT 1£5°068 QOUE|E JO iROS P S1AE() az
14E109 e 8 0OUBg 10 YpOU Py Snedl \
STWIO01  |Z202-LZ0Z [LZ0Z-020Z |020Z-6107 [650Z-21.0Z |85.02-2 10Z | L0Z-9L0Z |910Z-GLOZ |[SLOZ-PLOZ |PLOZ-ELOZ|  £LOZ-ELOZ zL02-110Z LHZ-0102 0102-6002 6002-800Z uondusasag #oud
B:mEE—EnE_ 21S-H0
010'29L°67 - - - - - - - - - ZHELIB'EL 862609'6 606'6EE'D - - [evoibay |ej0iqng
Zog'saz BF1'$21 §r9's8 60595 sjuawancidw jeuagesadg g9 Amy|  Z1Y
TER'TIN'S 100'S06C LIZSLLE 002 162°1 apeibdn femonid-ggi Amy| LY
637'196'Z CI9'FLEL §90'956 161'0€9 abueyossu| Py Aessiuop-) Ampi O
985°1Z1'84 BLS'TLY'S 7i1'268'S £65°099'¢ Ao pueg spisess-| Amg|  £d
SIVI0L  [Z20Z-1Z0Z |k202Z-0Z0Z |020Z-6L0Z |6102-8L0Z |810Z-LL0Z [210Z-910Z [91L02-GLO0Z [SLOZ-¥EOZ |PVOZ-SL0Z]  £L0Z-ZIOT Z10Z-EL0Z LLOZ-010Z 0102-6002 $002-8002 uorduasag ilord

SA1NIWITI LISNVYL OGNV YHOMLIN NOILYLUHO4dSNVHL - WWHO0Hd LNIWIAAOHEINI TVLIAVYD

sjuawanoidw] jeuciGay




Z| abed
£319vL

Ve 15122 TRIE TR TORrE - WY RN Winw iR 18w I oo lowser - mtr =% = wE aoueeg pung Bujpug
- 101810 1BUISKIZ  16916VIZ  169VRLOT  169LIGO7  1690/C07  L6U¥e6GZ  I6UZLPC  |GOVO0EC  160969@F  1B9SIE 9g8 %58 958 - adueeg pung BuyuuBeg
SER'0S1'ET - - - 000'29¢ 000'202 000°202 000°98¢ 000°25Z ) 0006222 000'90LE 000'ezE'sl  SEETIE - - 958 SNUBABY |BNUY 16N
SoL'8LK'Yl . . : : . AT S 4 000°C98'Z  L10'089'%Z sesmupuadxg [ejoL
ca1RizTe - - - - - . . - - - - G91'Z457  000'C987T 000'c98e 2307089 Buoueuty uee
(000°000' 12} {00005z ¥1) (0oo°es.'g) {000'244'5) sppau) - [eaoluey Buping
000°002"22 000'0ST¥L  00000Z'9  0000SL'9 000'221'22 {eaciuey Buiping
BRI (51) spoafosrd
o : sainypuadxs
000'629' M - . . 000°28¢ 000'20Z 000'20Z 000'98¢ 000'252°1 000627 000'90LE 000'e25'8L  000°22)°6  0D0'EER'Z 000'6887  ©.8'089'ZZ  senueasy R0L
000°ZpL - - - - - - - - - - - 000'881 000482 000°282 Sbee0s {b1) SuelIkeg pUE SPaa30ld UeaT|
- 000'SZ¥'L {g4) senuensy g0
{00g'000'12) (0000827 1) (000'05.2'9) (000'2215) {z\) supel)) - saieg pue
000°88'19 - . . 000°29¢ 000°202 000202 000°98E 000252 000'€ZLZ  000'90L'E  O000'BALZE  000'8SE'®  000'02E'S  000°0/5C  BEM'GLE'RM (11) sateg pusy
C SBNUIASY peiedpeq
2NNIATY V8 ANV A€l GIANNA SLOArONd dID '8
- asuejeg puny Bujpug 59181 - saupjeq pund Bujpuz
00'Gle'rLlL  |ansesey AousBuguod g s1500 180 (MOL aasesay Aousbuguoy § SIS0 IS0 [E10L
V8560993 OAJ UeBURU oI oATo86y ADUIBRUTS
SrbOIL'ET S0 R0 oL 000'552 £9L'Lp'e 507 BYIO oL
0E6'952 61 51507 JONEI0.e) - - _ {6) S0 JeyEgaIE)
Q15'ES0'Z4 1500 Yoafoid [RUSHIBRY 000'552 goLLM'e () 51507 Josfoid [2uogppY
SojoueHnU0) § 41600 J6YI0 SOPUSHURUTT § 51600 OG0
oco'sie'vil | TEUVAOFLL GEOVOOWLL  DEDZEovEl  OEUGOIOOL WEUEITCOT  WEOVIRIS  WOBLTE  WORINI - WUtRFes  NURMEIE  WFLVST  WCeR0er  Sheee =Ry BITwe sauReg pung Buipuz
- 020%99%LL  OE0/€9%L)  0S0'BOL90F  OE0CLC0l  OC0%/6Z6  (OEO'S/P'E6  OE0BHL/8  OEOEPP29  OE0'9ES/E  O0B'LLYS)  9EZBYOBL 6922 1597181 - - sauRyeg pund Buiuuben
0c0'BIERLL |- 000’2z 000'826°, 00008y 00066} 000'96S'e  000'RSE'Q 000°GA'vE 000089 622 0%'cc  (GEV0/SE)  [965C06h  (E9C'6SH 159'9EY e are BNUSABY [BRULY JON
BL9'GIY 1AL - - - 000°94} LLLYBLBE  SEVEEL'R.  EEO'PBG'SE  £9E'SLYPZ 6FS'0GK'SE  988°ZIM'BL  Sasnypuadx3 |ejol
000'989 - - - - . - - - 000941 000°9}} 000°91E 000'911 000'8HL 000'9i L 000°5vE ¥oolg Buytoy 814
054'066'8 000'292's 0SL4€1T  0ST'800% (0} juswabeusy Jeyqey
- , (5 weysAg abeujeiq wioig
0.5's8¥ 0% ¥BL0SE'R  9SB'LEK'S pEFELVE S7L208'L  000'0VS {t} uopeawby Jarem
gewrieL |- - - - . - - - - bAL949RL 1S9099LF  SLVB0K'LE 688'SIOML  £28'920'F OE9'BIZ'EL usuel | uogeyodsues |
$0afoig
sainypuadxy
oo0'ie8’zez |- 000'2Z 0008262 000'98'y 000'66€"Y 000'86SY  000°8550 000'529%  O00'BZ0'SZ  000'SS80F  0G0'CRS'0L  000'066'S8S  O000'PLEWZ  000°2Z8'CL  GMOTOEE'IZ  senuoaey |woL
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - EETEE anuBASY 1|
000'000°c  000'00 {£) spssotud uaot
000’00y {z) wuawerou) xe |
SBNUBAaY JauRD
po0'ie8Zez |- 000'42 000'926°2 00008y 000'668'Y 000'86EF  000'8SE'9 000'629'v2  000'IZ0'GZ  000'GSE0F  ODO'ESS'0.  000'066'SS  000'PLE'WZ  000'£Z60L  000'620°0L 394 Juswdoirsg
SONUBABY PEIRNPa
£33d LNINLOTIAIA 04D A8 dAANNA SLOAMONd 41D Y
;oL ZZ-1ZoT | Z2-LT0Z 12-0Z0Z 02-6102 61-810Z 81-210Z 219402 91-5102 917102 rI-£10Z £1-Z10Z ZH10Z LL-0LOZ 01800z | &0-800Z | (1) gOOZOL
o) 608002

ZZ0Z/1LZOZ - 600Z/8002 (d12) weiBoid Jusweacidur) eyided jo Lavwwing

7’



Table 3 CIP Summary Table Footnotes

(1) This column summarizes CIP revenues and expenses through June 2008 and these totals are not included in
the “2008-09 to 2021-22 Totals".

(2) “Tax Increment’ revenue is designated to back up FORA CIP projects; in FY 07-08 $4 million of this revenue
source was spent on the Board approved ET/ESCA coniract change orders (CCO#1 and CCO #2) and CIP road

designs.

(3) "Loan Proceeds”; In FY 05-06 FORA entered into a Bank fine of credit agreement, as authorized by the FORA
Board, to ensure all CIP obligations will be met in a timely mannet, despite cash flow fluctuations. In FY 08-09
FORA anficipates advancing up to $3M for Eucalyptus Road. The principal can be realized by the sale of FORA's

interest in Preston Park.

(4) "Water Augmentation" is FORA's financial obligation for the approved water augmentation project. Project
financing (e.g. cash advances, debt issuance) will be accomplished by MCWD (project lead agency) and any
partners (i.e. MRWPCA). The FORA financial obligation will be used to pay back cash advances and/or assist in
retiring debt and/or funding capital improvements for the system. Please refer to Section Il b) " Water
Augmentation."

(5) FORA's “Storm Water Drainage System" obligation has been retired. Please refer to Section 1l ¢} "Storm
Drainage System Projects”.

(6) "Habitat Management" amounts are estimates. Habitat Management Endowment final amount is subject to
approval by U.S. Fish & Wildiife Service and California Department of Fish & Game. Please refer to Section [l d)
"Habitat Management Requirements."

(7) “Other Costs & Contingencies” are subject to cash flow and are not received in actual amounts until distant
out-years of the program.

(8) “Additional Project Costs" are potential and unknown additional basewide expenditures not included in current
project cost estimates for transportation projects (.g., contract change orders to the Environmental Services
Cooperative Agreement, street landscaping, unknown site conditions, project changes, debt financing, and
habitat/environmental mitigation).

(9) "Caretaker Costs" are associated with potential delays in redevelopment, which represent interim capital costs
associated with property maintenance prior fo transfer for development. This includes costs of managing property
transfer documents, legal review of rights of access and other documents during the transfer of land, illegal
dumping clean-up costs, funding for self-insured retention for pollution legal liability insurance, and fiability
insurance (as per Keyser-Marston estimates of caretaker and other costs, revised).

(10) "Contingency Reserve" provides funding for jurisdictions to accommodate increased habitat management
costs, restorafion of storm drainage site in State Parks (31.5M), relocation of utilities ($2M), unknown subsurface
conditions, construction cost phasing, unknown CEQA mitigations, financing costs, reimbursements for prior
FORA expenses, and shortfalls in CFD revenue when inflation exceeds maximum allowed 5 percent following

FORA's sunset.

(11) "Land Sales” Revenues are regularly evaluated in order to apply changes in local development fees, market
realities, and other factors to adjust land prices in the region.

13



(12) “Land Sales — Credit" is credit due specific developers who perform building removal by agreement with
FORA. The value of the building removal work is subtracted from the developer's land sale proceeds due FORA.
Both "Land Sales - Credit" {a credit to the Developer toward land sales due) and "Building Removal - Credit' (a
credit to FORA toward its Building Removal program obligations} illustrate cash flow neutral transactions. FORA
entered into two such agreements with: 1) Marina Community Partners, and 2) East Garrison Partners (EGP) for a

total land sale/building removal credit of $26,177,000.
(13) “Other Revenues” include Abrams B loan repayment of $1,425,000 collected in FY 06-07.

(14} "Loan Proceeds and Payments”. In FY 05-06 FORA entered info a bank line of credit agreement, as
authorized by the FORA Board, to ensure all CIP obligations will be metin a timely manner, despite cash flow
fluctuations. Per Memorandum of Agreement among FORA, RDA of Monterey County, and EGP goncerning
certain basewide funding obligations, EGP will reimburse FORA for interest payments made on $4.1 million
principat. Dollar amounts illustrate the credit ling principal drawdown by FORA and interest reimbursements by

the developer.

(15) “Projects” include building removal activities at: 1) Dunes on Monterey Bay ($46 million), 2} Imjin Office
($400K), 3) East Garrison ($2.177 million), 4) Stockade {$2.2 million), and 5) Surplus |l {$4 miliion).

14



Appendix A

Protocol for Review/Reprogramming of FORA CIP
(Revision # 2 September 20, 2000)

Conduct quarterly meetings with joint Committee Members from Administrative Committee, Infrastructure Technical Advisory
Committee (“ITAC”), Planning Group and WWOC, Staff representatives from the California Department of Transportation
(“CALTRANS™), TAMC, AMBAG, and Monterey Salinas Transit (“MST”) will be requested to participate and provide input to
the joint committee.

These meetings will be the forum to review developments as they are being planned to assure accurate prioritization and
timing of CIP projects that will need to be in place to best serve the developments as they are planned to come on line.

The joint committee will balance projected project costs against projected revenues as a primary goal of any recommended
reprogramming/reprioritization effort.

Provide a mid-year and/or yearly report to the Board (at mid-year budget and/or annual budget meetings) that will
include any recommendations for CIP modifications from the joint committee and staff.

Anticipate FORA Board annual approvat of a CIP program that comprehensively accounts for all obligatory basewide
projects under the BRP.

These basewide project obligations include transportation/transit, water augmentation, storm drainage, habitat management,
building removal and fire fighting enhancement.

15



g} abeg - - - - - - - - - - - - - 000'z 000z ¥3s i) me Jo afiayjo)) Aarajuopy
- - - - - - - - - - 000°2 0002 - - 00071 Hn (1) (ssmoey gndreanze) gL JAYL
¥ 379vl patardwos jasfold (p)
U BSTI9Y 9526 UM IUSISISLOD punoj joslord (g)
) uogaipsunl |30 4 panasdde joalaly (z)
pasodoid 308014 {1}
- - - - - - - 000°98 000'96 60096 000'96 000'96 - - 00008t HYW {1) eary wawdojeasg anuouoas podiny
- - - - - . - - - 000'%S 000°28 000'¢y 005'82 000°kL 000'¢22 YW (&) feg Asigop uo saun]
. - - - - - - - - - 0007 000’y 000y 000’z 00021 QoK (¢} wewdojaasg souiQ | uosiues) 1se3
- - - - - - - 000'2 000"k 000"ty 000' 2y 000'2% - - 006's87 oW {1} Wed 20y0 1 vosweBiry
- - - - - - - 000'8 000°8 000'g - - - - 000%Z OO (1} uswdoleaq Erorsunor jypue
- . - - - - - - - - - 000'L 000z - 000'c oo {1) wed asioy
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - OoW 30WO Aunod Asisyuon
. . . . . - 000'gy - - - - - - - 0008y AdA (1) 30m0 A Aasapuon
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 0004 § - $ 0c0'se § - § - ¢ - $ - $ | 000 $ OHG {1) 82w0 yep Aoy oG
[EITT
- - - . - - - - - 000°ZEE'E - - - - 000'2eE’L snolrep, [equapIsey ayiQ
- - - - - - - . - N - - : - : v3s {¥} wonsoig
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - . v3s {r) Aequng
- - - - - - - . - . : - - - - HI0 () our Luaju|
- - . - . . - 000'6 00011 000°}L 000°LL 000'}1 000'1) 000°}1 000'6L oYW (i} 1elusyy vogisuest suerayap,
- $ - $ - $ - $ - g - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $- HYW (1) 2 (4} sy yomann Jaeys
- $ - $ - 5 - $ - $ - g - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $i- v () Auowgny Buisnoy poow
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - § - $ - § - $ - $ - § - g - $|- oY () g suragy
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - § - $ - $ 000'viZ $ 000'%h1L $ - $ - $ - $ - § 1 000'aLy JvW () weg uoney
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 000'e9s) $ 0009827 $ 000'02Ze $ - $ - ¢|oon'seze ¢ U (¢) snouy ssaudin
. g - $ - ¢ - g - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - § - $ - $ - $ - $1- $ o {r) Wed uoisaly
JeRUSPISaY JUSLIaIEIdo 4 BURSIxS
- - - - - - - - - - - - hd - - SNOUBA um.acm_u_mmw_ R0
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 00DZO6'LL  § 0009977 § OOOLbSS $ - $ - $|o00a00e % [El01ng
- - - - - - - - - 000°€08'} 000'8e2"} 000°ZL6 - - 000'¢56'E aua SENSE]) JOAG/SIUOYUMO |
- - - . - - - - - 000°665°01 000'168'6 000'882'L - - 000'92£'22 0MQ B010PIOA/SOPUOT)
- - - - - - - - - - 00041 000°06¢'} - - 000'¥95'E 0da SAWOH ofed
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ¢ - $ 000'9s $ 000209 $ - $ - §|000eslz oYa SE[IIA JI0S)
- (1) s¥eQ Aoy jag
- - - - - - - - - - 000°3LL'Y - - - 000922 LE {1) (g JerubyyBi) Bursnoy sorapuop
- - - - - - - - - - 000'509 - - - 000'509'y LES) (1) Bussnoy xied speig
- - - - - - . - - 000025t 000'E0E 1 000'€0E"} 000'%08"} - 000'0ep's ¥3s (¢} Buisnay Wosay apiseeg
- - - - - - - . - - - 000°089Z - - 0000597 LEH (1) syeddoyg
- - . - - - - 100°'889'8 - - - - - - 0009898 QoWion {1} 45 - sndwe 1se3 o)
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 000Zere § 000'M42%Z) % 000'E9'6t ¢ 000'99s'9L § 000°0526 $ 000'Ss6') $| 0002689 ¢ [Blolang
: : . : : . - : 000666 000195 A TRA 000898 000'8FE 000°5¥Z 81 0o 3jqepiogy
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 000°€ErT $ 0000128 § 00008€'sk  $ 00OYSSTL $ 000'9zK"2 $ 000°209't $|o00zi9sy ¢ oon ajes jopep
{¢) | uostuen) Jseg
- - 0008 - - - - 000824y - - - - 000'822 - 000'YEE" YL 0N {£)108a8 Wg N
- - - - - - - - - - 000°16 000928 000'92¢ 000'9z€ 000°690°) UYWNSD 1) Beisnap sndwed yuoy gNSD
- - - - . - - . - - 000111y 00011 Y - - 000'222'8 HvW (1 aor owwL
- $ - § - $ - $ - $ - $ 000°666') $ 000'v98' $ 000'166' $ 000'109'8 $ 000E0'YL % DOOBBS0L $ 0001591 $ - $[o00'geses g Eioang
p - - - - - - - - - 000'580°C 0009097 - - 000169 W M0 AiapmoT - sjuaupedy
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ¢ o00'sko’) $ 000'867°C $ 000°T0e’) $ 0006122 $ 000109 $ 000716 § - $ - $ | 000°8EE°0) oYW B2U0D{ICA/PONMOT - SJong
- $ - s - $ - ¢ - $ - $ 000'956 $ 000956 $ 0007282 & 000282 $ 000212 ¢ 006'128 $ - $ - $ ] 600'pL2'Y U speng
- t - $ - $ - $ - § - $ - $ - $ - $ 000748 $ 000280y $ 0009457 $ 000718 $ - $ [ ooo'syg’z U suwoyumoy
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 0009 $ 0000167 ¢ 000°298°C $ 00061Z°€ $ 000'%05°L $ 000'192 $ - $ | 000'S62'1L oYW prepuelg
. $ - $ - § - $ - § - & - $ 000958 $ 000'EEVZ $ - $ 000'8KE $ 000956 $ 0006z $ - $ | oo0'olsy YW sbeten
- $ - § - § - $ - $ - $ - S 0o0'9lz: § 000€95'Z $ 0008982 $ 0009477 $ 000'%96"1 $ 000192 $ - $)000'cP9'0L ¢ Uvin Kaiy
oYW {£) keg Aasejuop uo saung
- g - $ - $ - 5 - $ - § - $ - ¢ 000'989' $ - g - § 000'8¥L'9 - 5 - $ | 0D0'9eE'yi YW (£) spauy ssauddy
- s - § - $ 000'Zesy S 000'8Y9Y % 000249y $ 000659y $ 00069y $ 006Ky ¢ 000169 $ 000'918°0L & 000'%0¢'L $ 000'g98 ¢ - $|oooclosy g [Bloiang
- - - : - - - - - 00008, 0004y 000217 00021z - 000879 € YW seje1s3
- $ - $ - $ 000'7es'r S 000'6ZL'L $ o0pO'9rZL $ 000'E0g’) $ 000't0g’s $ 00050t $ 000'cy $ 000'v80'S $ 000'%4L § 000'vEy $ - $[oo0'LegvL s HYW glanen
- § - $ - $ - $ DO00BE'L § 000'1ZS $ 000'556°L $ 000556} % 000'556°L $ 000216 $ 000°LZ8'S § 000 $ - s - $|oo0'cgu'yt ¢ o ¥ianen
- $ - $ - $ - s - $ 000'68E'C § 000'Ev0'L $ 000'cy0') $ 000'Er0'L $ 000209 § 000'2Lb1 $ 000'L6E $ 000'vsL § - ¢ | ooo'gor'e $ HYW abpugnexiey sasnig
- $ - $ - § - $ 0008217 4 0001ZS $ 000k $ 0009k $ 000'gbE $ 0o0'gre $ - $ 000'8¥E $ 000y $ - $|oooeery ¢ v SwoyuME |
avi (£} swbiay euuepy
[BRUAPISSY Moy
710 120202 0Z-610Z 618107 BL-LHOT L1907 91510z SLpL0T PISL0Z Eb-Z10Z ZL02 L0102 016062 60-300Z IeJo1 Z2-1Z0Z | uopotpsunr
INUIAIY 32151 S2310e4 AJunwwon 91 60-8002
701 9 XION:Addy

: -



Ly abeg
¥ 3718VL

cioZ

L3INPaYG s34 1500IBABC], PAI TUBWNZOP , 'SIUBIENO0Q YO, U0Das Japun RIoei0) Mwn e [ § ‘71 s191] Jo uonduassp 838 aseald (8)
.9 xipuaddy di7) o) $8|qe} dnyoeg, PSR WBLINICP , SIUBWNI0Q Y (), UONIES :A0un BIO'BIO) MMM 12 L3S 5] Wed ‘safejoojarenbs Buipying pue siun [eRuapisa) Butpnjow g xpuaddy) ¢ aiqe} skp of saiqe) dn yoeg (g)

%LT
%LT
%LZ
%LE
%l'T

80740 xapu|

889'6
754401
£69S
190'e}
orrey

BO/L/Z BARORY]

$

e’ €592

vZErLL 9.6

Erg's a6v'y

8LLTL BTE'O

A4 $ pIEVE
LVLOM08YT  Z00¢ PaKIOPY

paaiduies alold {p)
el 35nay aseq Upm juaisisuod puna alosd (¢}
uogaipsunl [2a0} Aq paaosdde aford (7)
pasodaud afoig (1)
{woos sed) a0y
(euge Jad) pEjey
(a0 sad) [eursnpul B soyQ
{n 1ed) Eruapisay Bugsacy
$ (npiad) [eruspisey mey

“Buipunas o) enp ppe Jou Aew jqE] Ul S0 ] TusUILONIoddE |C poLeL PLE sje: uo paseq ZOOZ AJBTIURF 03 PEIE|iUI ‘MO[BY LMOLS BI2 SBJE) X8} [1060S 1oLsIQ SaNlive 4 QIUNULILOD SPMBSEH YN0 810N

00022 $ 000'SESL § O000'9EY'Y § 000%EEYT ¢ 000'96E'Y $ 000'%5E'D § 000'G9%Z  § 0001120'SZ  § O00'SSE'0Y  § 000°COSDL & 00006685 $ 000'%LE%T $ 000°IzZ5'0) $| 000168z oL
- ¢ (ooo'szd) ¢ (poo‘ors § (ooo'tos)  § (oo0'E0d) $ (ooo'so0’l} ¢ (ooo'0BLE) $ {oo'0s0'y) 5 (ooo'as6's) ¢ (ooooez'ol) ¢ (000'zZEI'G) $ (000'204T $ {000's62) $ |(o00'089'a8) ¢ 0011 [Etolang
- (coo'oRl) (ooo‘az) (p60s21) {0o0's21) (000052 (000'6EE) {000'900°1) {00o'ser' 1) (000°ev5'Z) (0006871 {000°c29) 000 {000"% L1 6] 00 {spun pOE) € 2211
- {800'682) (000"y62; (000'162) (000")62} {oo0'aLp) {oo0's9s'L) {000°'229'1) {000724'2) (000'8€2'y} (p00'36€'2) (000'zzL')) {oo0‘zz)) (000'281's1) 005 (sun gog) 7 1811
- $ tooowve) ¢ (ooowz)  § (000'z£2) % (000'l8T) $ {oo0'ses) § ooo'esz'y) ¢ (ooo'see't) ¢ oozl ¢ (Doo'ser'st ¢ (ooosse'l) $ (000'z16) $ {(0oo'col) $ looo'ese’zl) ¢ 00 (suun og) | 1811
o] jueusTIpY BUISHCH Siqepsony
- - - - - . 000'8St1 - . - - - - 000°ESH') AN (w1 0g4) (1) sasndwes) ‘a3 N AUSD ON
- 0007ZY'Z - - - - - - . - - - - 000'22y'z 0oWIaN {uw 05z} {¢) snduseq 1583 0N
- - - - - . - - - - 000'22Y'T - - 000°2ZH'T LES (uw 082} (1) 1230 sleD) uey
- . - - - - - - - - 000"2v%°) - - 000291 v3s (uw0.4) (g) sereyseuw] esinod poo) apisess
- - - - - - - - - - - 0002618 - 000" 261'E LES {u 0gg) (¢) 310y 2sIn0g Joo) apiseas
- - - - - - - - - - . a00's/e'e - 000518 oYW (1w o} (¢} 2anseg (n4 - seung
- - - - - - - - - - - - 000'696 000'696 oY (v 01 ) (g) 2o1uag papwiy - saung
- - - - - . - - - 000°16E'E - - - 00016€'€ v {wu oge) (1} soonaioy wodity BuLey
. - - - - - . - - - 000'r¥8'y - - 0008t OOW (w005} (1) 8104 1214 Joyed
- - - - - - . - 000597 000'59% - - - 000086 o¥a {wr 96) (1) areysswly sxyeQ Ay [ag
- $ - $ - $ - - § - $ - 000'696 $ 000%2h'e $ 000'800'} $ - $ - $ - $| 000666 3 (03214] {swoos y5y) (1} eloH sxeq) Aay jag
GISTEIE
- - - . - . - - - - (00'8e - - 000'3¢ LES (1) spadayg
- - - - - - - - - 000'h0 000'70 - - 000'208 HYW (1) oL JWwL
- - - - - - - - - 000'5kE 000'6E5 000°102 000°219'1 008'202's UvW (£} Aeg Aassjuopy uo saung
- - - - - - - - - - 000'z91 - - 000°z81 v3s (1) (dems) uonmg a4
- - - - - - - - - - 000'669° - - 000°559'2 vas (1) (dems} g sepyBigyBey 10 nog
. - - - - - - - - - - - 000'ELL'D 000°€1L'9 v3s (1) o1es uER
- - - - - . - - - - - 000'912 000'91Z 000'2EY 00N (1} Irejey | wostues) 1se3
- - - - - - 000°c2E 000°248 000'LLE - - - - 000"2L0°) CON (1) wausdoeAap feiauwIO) (IpuE]
- . - - - - - - - - - - - - Oon Iierey Auno?) Ausjuop
- 000°02Y 000'sZy ooo'ser 000'€2y 000'cy 000°s2F 000'cey 000's2k 000°c2y 000'52y - - 000222y 02N (1) 19205 WbI3 N
- 000082 - - - - 000'082 - - - - - . 000°095 02N {1) sndwe9 183 9N
- 000'¥89 - - - - 000'r88 - - - - 000'749 - 000'260' HoN (1) sesndwe) m g "N [euad I
- - - - - - - - - - 000'912 - - 000'942 UV {e}euag) Anunuswon) siiouy sseidiy
- $ - $ - $ - - § - $ - - $ - $ 000917 $ - $ - $ - $1 00091 ) 0da (1) 1=y sYeQ Ao 160
ey
- (00'9¢ - - . - 0009 - - - - 000'9g - 000801 HYWON (1) sasndweq *m 2 "N lBAUBD DN
- - - - - - - 000'9Z 000'9Z 000'92 000'9Z 080'9Z - 008°0€ 1 OoW AR [ESpU] [lupue
- - - - - - - - 000°1 000°18 0oo'le - - 000°c8) 03N Aed asioH
. - - - - - . - - - - - - - 09} (1) ‘pur B Aune)) Aarzuopy
- - - - - 00028 - - - - - - - 0c0°ze R (1} s1eAudouang - [eLgsnpul
. - - - - 00028 - - - - - - - 000'Z8 AN (1) prep, “dio 413 - reLasnpu
- - - - - - - - - 000 000'g - - 000'2L U (1) qoL owvl
- - - - - 000'6% 000'6k 0006t 000'6¥ 00087 - - - 000'SPZ HwW {1) easy wawdojasa oruouoog podiny
TeigsTpy;
0002 000°1€ 000'ke Q00°3€ 000'1€ 000'1€ 000°LE 000'1€ ooe 0c0'1E - oo'gl - 000'72¢ HYW/ON (1) sasndwe) 1534 2 YUAN f4Us) ON
- - . - - - - - . - - - - - HYWION {1} sndwe) yinog eavad N
- . - - - - - - - . - - - - ooWan (1) sndwes 1se3 9N
. - . - - - - - - - 0004 - - 000°Z1 v3s (1) {aausssjuodyeds) sjes urep
- - - - - . - - - - 0002 - - 000'Z LES (1) soyo prep diod apiseag
ZC-1Z0Z 120208 026402 654102 8)-L10Z 119102 L5102 S1L02 PI-EL02 El-z10z LAl H-0L0z 01-6002 60-8002 1910l 221202 | uonaipsunr
INUBAIY JoLSIG SIBIDe 4 ABununuos) o} 60-2002

9 XIGN3ddV

.



- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ¥3s (soussauoofeds) a2 Uk
g1 abed ) . . . - - i : - - - - - - - vas 0O Em% aoo%u_wmmm
- - - - - - - - - - - . - - - vas e 10 569)j07 Assa1uop
v 3navi . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - HyW (saqoe) atand/aae) GOL DJWVL
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - oYW ealy eludoaasg onuouoag podiy
YN N YN YiIN ViIN ¥IN YN YN WIN VIN Y¥iN YiN YiIN YN YN oY Aeg Aausjuop uo saung
- - - - - - - - - - - - 000°eg 000°ce 000'99 oW WEd 90 Wl
ViN YN VIN YN WiN WiN YiN VIN YN ¥IN VIN ¥IN YIN VIN ¥IN CON luatudolaasg 80O | UOSLES) JSe
VN YN VIN VN YN ¥iN YN YIN YN VIN VIN YIN ¥IN ViIN YN QN Yed a0 py vosiuefiay)
VIN W¥IN VIN YN ViIN WiN VN YIN YN YN ¥iN VIN YN VIN YN ] JusLdoieAR( [BIDISLULLOY [JypuET]
YIN W¥IN YIN YiN VN YN YN YN YN YN YIN VN ¥iN YiIN YIN oo Hied 85I0H
- - - - - - 00059} - - 000°get - 000°cE L - - 000'1E¥ 09N 800 AQuUnag Asleol
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - AMA 80W0 AiD Aersiuapy
¥iN WIN YIN ViN VN WIN VN N YN YIN N VIN YN YIN YN 0{d 20 $XEO 49y 12
3O
- - - - - - - - - , - - - - - - Snauep, [ENUapIsay BYID
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - v3s Aequng
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 10 JUf LSy
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - HYIN g suresqy
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - oY sfouy ssaidin
- - - . - - - - - - - - - - - Hy Wegd uoisald
[BijUapISay Juatiaoe|doy/bulsIXg
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - SnoUeA [ERUSpISaY JAUO
Y VIN VIN ViN WIN VN YN YN VN VIN VN 000°000°5 YN ViN 000°000'G [Er01gng
YIN ¥IN VIN ¥iN WiN WiN YN VIN ¥IN viN N WiN YN WiN VIN (o}21a] SEJISE]) JOISG/SaLIoyumMo |
WIN VIN WiN YN VN VN YN YIN YIN YN VN W¥N YN YiN VIN 0da B2JOPBIOAN/SOPULD
¥iN ¥IN YIN VN VN VN VIN ¥IN ¥IN YN VN ¥iIN ViN WiN ViN 0oda SeloY oned
YN N YN N ¥iN YiN YN YN VN YN YN ViN ViN VN VN 0¥Q SE(IA JI0D
SYeQ) A9y 18Q
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Vs (13 seybupybiy) Buisnoy S30pHOM
VN ViN WIN VIN ViN YN ¥iN VN ¥IN VN YN YIN VN ViN - v3s Buisnoy syled sieig
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - v3s BuisnoH Wosay apiseas
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - vas apaddoug
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - QNN 45 - sndwen 1se3 51
YiN WIN YIN YIN ViN VIN ¥IN YIN ¥IN YIN 000°000°9L  WIN YiN YN 000°'000°91 N
N N N YN N N N YN YN N YN YN N N - oo iqepIoyy
YIN WIN VIN YN ViN YN VN YN ¥IN VIN ¥IN YN ViN YN - 0N gl jayey
- [ UOSLUES) 158
¥IN WIN YN ¥iN VIN VN YN VIN ¥IN VN 000'05Z vi 000069 000'000' 12 {EJCIONS
N ¥IN YN Wi N VN YN WiN YN N YN YN YN N ¥IN oYW Mo} AigpymoT - sjuaugedy
YN WIN YIN N VIN ¥iN VN YIN WIN ¥IN ¥IN YN ViIN W¥IN YN oYW a010pIcANPON/MOT - Slang
YN VN YN VN YIN YN ¥IN YIN YN YN ¥IN YN YN YN YN HviA slang
VIN VIN YIN YN VIN ViN ¥iN YIN VN ¥N ¥IN YN W¥iN ¥iN YN HviN alwoyumo |
YN ViIN YN ViN VIN VN YN VIN N VN VN YIN YiIN VN ¥IN Hviy piepuelg
YN VIN YIN YN N ¥iN ¥IN YIN YN VN ¥IN VIN WiN ViN YIN oIy abewe)
YN WVIN YN ViN VIN VN YiIN YIN ViIN vIN ¥IN YIN YN ViN YIN HYW Asiy
HYN feg Aassjuop uo saung
YN WIN YN ¥iN VIN ¥iN YiN viN 000'006'  000°06Z'L  QO0'00EZ 000°00¥F'2 000'066°L v sllouy ssa1dk)
¥iN VIN YN ¥iN VIN VN YiN YN YN ¥iIN ¥IN YN WIN VIN YN lejoigng
YN N WiN YN N YN N ¥iN YN YN N YN WIN ¥iIN YIN HYW salEis3
¥iIN WIN VIN N VN YN YiN YIN VIN ¥iN ¥IN YIN ¥N ViN YN HYW glexen
VIN WIN VIN ¥iN ViIN ¥iN YN VIN YN YN ¥N YN YN ViN ¥iN Hvin Y 18%eN
WIN VIN VIN viN YIN YN YN VIN VIN YN YN YN YN YN YN JviN abpugneyen Jsisni
VIN N YN YN N YN WIN YN YN ¥iN ¥iN YiN YiN YN ¥IN HvA Soyumo |
YiN b=k sy euLepy
Jenuapisay MaN
¢c-120g 12-020¢ 0¢6L02 61-8L0Z 81-110Z L1-9102 a1-cL0g SL-¥L02 FL-EL0C £LTLog FARINYi7A Li-0Log 01-6002 60-800¢ lelol ZZ-L20¢ uonaIpsune
0} 50-2002

INUBADY 2|ES pue]

zloL 8 XIGN3ddVY



61 abed
¥ 31avL

6661 LZ Ay ‘PlEOg WO O} wnpuelowsw ,a3usBig ang, swelskg Buluveld B J1Wouass :5asInog
“SSNEA J3YRWIJUBLING Ly Jamol Ageqoid I 2I0J8I5L} PUB 666} S0UIS pajepdn Usaq 10U aABYy BJsY palunsse senjea wun Jad ay) ‘oS jo auiB 12 esiesdde AQ PALILIAISP 80 Jm DUB 318 UMOYS JBLY WY AN ABLU SNUBASI SAES [UB| [ENjSy “BUeys Sy Loy 51500 59(es Bumled Y0 WM (5/0G S9USASI SSIES PUE| YIS UORZIPSIAT (90| PUE a0 4 810N

- - - 000'L9¢ 000" 107 000'202 000'08¢ 000°262°L  Q00'SZLT  O000'003'S  000'SLLZE  000'6S6'8 000°9Z¢'6 0009452 000°288°19 el
. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - AN sasndwe) jsam g YUoN [2Rus) JN
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 02W/oN sndiweg se3 on
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Ve [910H 31EO) uiepy
N ¥iN WiN WIN WIN YIN ¥N YN WIN ¥IN ¥IN YN YiN ¥IN YN v3as Saleysalll| 8sIn0Y OO apisesg
¥iN WIN N WIN WIN ¥N WIN WIN WIN ¥IN ¥IN ¥iN YN ¥IN ¥IN ¥3s [9I0H 88IN0Y) 4|05) SpISEsS
IIAIBG |IN4 - saunQg
173 WIN YN viN WiN ¥iN Wi ¥IN ¥iIN ¥iN YN ¥IN YN YN ¥N Hvl BMAIDG PaYLLIT - SaUNG]
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - HYIN Ho9/1810H Rodiy eulely
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 0OW 1EI0H 1&]4 Jaxreq
WiN WiN WiN WN YN WIN WN viN ¥IN ¥IN YIN YN WIN ¥IN viN 04d aleysaul| syeQ A=y [8g
VN WiN ¥IN ¥IN YN VIN ¥IN ¥iN YIN ¥IN WN YN VN ¥IN YN oud |10 S¥e0 A8y 1_RQ
WEOE_ 19J0H
WiN VN WN N WiN ¥ ¥iN WIN YIN WIN YIN ¥IN WIN ¥iN - v3s #jadous
YN Vi WiN ¥IN WIN WiN ViN WiN ¥IN WIN WIN ¥IN WiN YN - UV oL JnyL
N YN WIN in WiN WiN ¥iN ¥IN ¥IN WiN WiN ¥IN WIN WiN - Ui feg Kalouop uo seung
- - - - - - - - - . - 000'L0Y - - 000'LOY ¥3s {dems) uoneis au4
- - - - . - - - - - - 000°Z08 - - 000'208 v3s {dems) 1q ey Buybirs jo nog
- - - - - - - - - - - - 0002262 000°225'2 000'¥S0'S vas e ey
WIN WIN YN ¥IN ViN ¥iN ¥IN ¥iN WiN YN N ¥IN YN WIN YN OO (E38Y | UosLIES) Jse]
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - QO Eman_mSmﬁ [BIBLULUOY) [jypue]
- - - - - - - - 000°000°L 0000001 - - - - 000°000'7 OO ey Aunoy) Aassjuop
- - - - - - - - - - . - - - . OOW/MIN Jeans Whi3 on
. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - OMYON sndwe?) 1583 2
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - YW sasndwer) 1Sapm g YUON [BJUSD HN
N VN ¥iN ¥iN ¥IN WIN L7 ¥iN N WIN VN YN WiN N YN oYW JBjueD AunWL0y sljouy ssaidAn
¥N N YN wiN YN ¥iN ¥IN YN ¥iN ¥N ¥IN ¥IN YIN VIN YIN 0dd re3ou syeQ Aoy Bg
ey
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - HYWoN SasndWe) 1Sap 3 YHON [BU=S I
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - OOW jed [BLgsnpu jlupue
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 0O Wed 3510H
- - - 000'29¢ 000°202 000202 000' 202 000°20Z 000°20Z 000202 000'L0Z 000" /07 - - 000'220'T 09N pur By Aunos Asssjuop
- - - - - - - 000'2LG - - - - - - 000216 AHW SHRALG/INGN ] — [eLSnpUj
- - - - - - - 000'21% - - . - - - 000°2LG AdW prej 10D A1g - eusnpu
- - - - - - - - - . - - - - - oW aoL oWyl
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - HyW ealy JuawdapAs(q dlwouasg podiy
} EiBsnpu|
00071 000'9L 000'0t 000'al 000'04 000°g! 00091 000°at 000'921 yaunyg yen Buno
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - HYWIN $9sndwe) 1Ssp 3 UHON [BOUSD O
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Heiwon sndwe) ynos [egues N
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - QOMON sndwe) Jse3 on
2e- 1202 12-0202 0Z-640Z 61-81L0Z 8L-110Z 219102 916107 SI-71L0Z Y1102 e1-2h0Z ZL-110Z LL-0L0Z 0L-600Z 60-8002 {2301 ZZ-1.20T uopalpsunr
0} 50-8002

BNUaAdy 3es pue-

iz 8 XIGNIddY



ApprIuIx L

Background
An addition of approximately 30,000 AFY is required to meet existing future water supply needs in northern Monterey County.
Although a number of alternatives exist, it has proven difficult to meet the water needs with individual projects. The water managers,
water agencies, and stakeholders throughout Monterey County have been daveloping a Regional Plan that can meet all identified
water needs and provide a reliable, sustainable water supply. The Regional Plan is comprised of numerous projects and programs
that, combined, meet the regional water supply needs. A Regional Planning Approach provides the opportunity for reducing
costs, creating a broader base of benefits and beneficiaries, and provides a more environmentally sound, more reliable, and more
sustainable water supply.

y Regional Water Supply Program

Additional Supply Required within Northern Monterey County

California - American Water
Castroville

Marina Coast Water District (MCWD)
North County

Pajaro-Sunny Mesa

Multiple Beneficiaries, Multiple Benefits
Benefits

Maximizing sustainability

. Potential to create an environmental park in which facilities can be shared
and power from the Monterey Waste Management District's landfill can be
used

+  Reducing carbon footprint
Reducing environmental impacts
Reducing reliability upon outside sources of energy

Minimizing environmental impacts

»  Restoration of flows in Carmel River

+  Restoring sustainability of over drafted Seaside groundwater basin

+ Improving condition of seawater infruded Salinas groundwater basin
+  Reducing discharges to the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary
«  Creating an intrusion barrier in the Salinas Groundwater Basin

Maximizing flexibility for progressing with program implementation

+ Multiple pathways and alternatives are available for a successful outcome

+  Providing continued momentum by implementing local desalination, stormwater,
conservation, aquifer storage and recovery, and recycled water programs
immediately as the initial steps in the development of a Regional Program

Maximizing use of recycled water

+  Delivery to urban users

«  Expanded delivery to agricultural users

+  Use of recycled water for the Seaside Basin Groundwater Replenishment

Maximizing reliability

Beneficiaries

Castroville

Marina

Monterey County
Pacific Grove

Salinas

Seaside

Carmel River
Environmental Interests
Carmel

Del Rey Oaks

Monterey

Moss Landing
Prunedale

Sand City

Agricultural Water Users
Elkhorn Slough
National Marine Sanctuary
US Army

Potential to obtain funding through California State Propositions coupled with the Integrated Regional Water

Management Plan (IRWMP)

[ 20




G

Definitions of Terms

ey Regional Water Supply Program

1. Acre-foot: Equivalent to the volume of water required to cover 1 acre of land (43,560 square feet) to a depth of 1 foot. Equal to

325,851 gallons or 1,233 cubic meters.
2. AFY: Acre-feet per year

3, Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR): Process in which water is stored underground in a designated aquifer, to be extracted

for future use.

4, Desalination; Water treatment process for the removal of salts from saline water to produce and provide potable water.

o

MGD: Million gallons per day

6. Potable Water: Water of a quality suitable for human consumption and which meets all applicable U.S. EPA and California

Department of Public Health standards.

7. Recycled Water or Reclaimed Water: Wastewater treated to meet California Title 22 requirements. Depending on what leve!
of treatment, recycled water can be used for a range of uses including irrigation to indirect potable reuse,

Possible Components of Regional Program

Conservation 300
Stormwater 500
Seaside Aquifer Storage 1,400
and Recovery (ASR} / In-lieu
Recharge {ILR)
Sand City Desalination 300
Recycled Water Utilization
Regional Urban Water Up to 3,000
Augmentation Project
(RUWAP)
Seaside Groundwater Up to 2,500
Replenishment

Salinas Basin Groundwater Up t0 10,000

Salinas River Diversions Up to 7,800

Regional Desalination Facility 8,300

This includes an array of conservation measures te be implemented throughout the
County, (weather-based “smart” irigation controller program, high efficiency commercial
clothes washers, retrofit fo high-efficiency toilets, low-flow showerheads, drought tolerant
fandscape, etc.) Implementation to begin immediately.

Cisterns, percolation ponds, etc. Implementation may begin immediately.

Consists of injecting water from the Carmef River into the Seaside Groundwater Basin.
Phase | will be implemented by 2008. Expansion is planned for 2011. ILR will be
explored for further development.

This project is moving forward and censtruction will be complete in 2008.

Recycled water will be produced at the Monterey Regional Water Pollution Conirol
Agency (MRWPCA) Salinas Valley Reclamafion Plant. Phase | will be implemented in
2008-2009. There is potential for an extension fo Monterey, as well as potential for joint
use with Seaside Groundwater Replenishment Project. Interagency agreements are
vital o this component,

Replenish the Seaside Groundwater Basin with recycled water from MRWPCA Salinas
Valley Reclamation Plant.

Development of additional groundwater via wells in Salinas groundwater basin. Total yield
is a function of delivery of new supply to offset existing agriculiural groundwater pumping
and modification of existing limitations in use of groundwater within existing basin.
Diversions are encompassed by the SVWP, Water will be blended with stored recycled
waler and distributed to agricultural users in an expanded CSIP system, or diverted to
urban users following treatment.

The location, supply source, and type of well have yet fo be determined as part of this
analysis.

Potential Utban Supply N

Agricultural Irrigation Up fo 10,000

Recycled water would be stored during winter months for recovery and delivery during
summer irrigation season. Recycled water would be blended with increased diversions
from Salinas River and delivered to an expanded Castroville Seawater Intrusion Project
(CSIP) distribution system fo agricuttural lands adjacent to the existing CSIP distribution
system, consistent with Salinas Valley Water Project (SVWP) Phase 2 project description
in the SYWP EIR/EIS. Some portion of reduced agricultural groundwater pumping could
be ufilized fo meet domeslic water needs.




DEVELOPMENT FEE ALLOCATION AGAINST OBLIGATIONS OVER CIP HORIZON (08-09 - 24-22)

1. ALLOCATION OF FEES AGAINST OBLIGATIONS

$ % ¥
Forecast Revenues fram Developer Fees {DF) l 282,891,000 | Per Project Per $1
Cost Per Capital Projects:
1 Transportation/Transit 121,446,358 42.93% 0.4293
2 Potable Water Augmentalion 40,483,570 14.31% 0.1431
3 Storm Drainage System - 0.00% 0.0000
4 Habitat Management (1) 8,993,750 3.18% 0.0318
5 Fire Rolling Stock 696,000 0.25% 0.0025
& Other Costs & Contingencies 111,271,322 39.33% $.3633
Totals 262,891,000 100.00% 1.0000
ll. ALLOCATION TO TRANSPORTATION/TRANSIT
Transportation Costs - FORA Share 121,446,358
Allocation of DF to Transportation| | $ 0.4293 |
Transportation Project Obligations FORA Cost/Project Allocation to Projects
$ % $
Regional Highway Projects
R3  Highway 1-Seaside/Sand City 18,127,586 14.93% 0.0641
R10  Hwy 1- Monterey Road Interchange 2,961,488 2.44% 0.0105
R11  Hwy 156 - Freeway Upgrade 8,412,632 6.93% 0.0297
R12  Hwy 68 Operational improvements 265,302 0.22% 0.0009
Sub-total Regional 29,767,010 2451% 0.1052
Off-Site Improvements
1 Davis Rd nfo Blanco 601,347 0.50% 0.0021
2B Davis Rd, sfo Blanco 10,265,850 8.45% 0.0363
4D Widen Reservation, 4-lane to Watkins Gate 4,524,014 3.73% 0.0160
4E  Widen Reservation, Watkins Gt to Davis 2,628,969 2.16% 0.0093
8 Crescent St, extend to Abrams 1,075,809 0.89% 0.0038
Sub-total Off-Site 19,095,989 15.72% 0.0675
On-Site Improvements
FO2  Abrams (Crescent to 2nd Avenue connection) 900,980 0.74% 0.0032
FO5  8ih. Street 5,148,048 4.24% 0.0182
FO6  Inter-Gasrison 5,053,153 4.16% 0.0179
FO7  Gigling 6,409,276 5.28% 0.0227
FOYC General Jim Moore Blvd 15,089,013 12.42% 0.0533
FO11  Salinas Avenue 3,603,961 2.97% 0.0127
FO12 Eucalyptus Road 6,113,008 5.03% 0.0218
FO%3 Eastside Rd {New alignment in Scenario C) 14,870,468 12.24% 0.0526
EO14 South Boundary Road upgrade 2,542 505 2.09% 0.0090
Sub-total On-Site 59,730,421 49.18% 0.2111
Total Transportation 108,593,419 89.42% 0.3839
Translt Capital Obligations
T3 Transit Vehicle Purchase & Replacement 7,175,054 591% 0.0254
T22  Intermodal Centers 5,677,885 4 68% 0.0201
Total Transit 12,852,939 10.58% 0.0454
Grand Totals 121,446,358 100.00% 0.4293

Notes:

()

The remaining balance in Habitat Mangement obligation is expected to be met by £Y '09-10; the % allocation to projects will change. Similarly,

the allocation formula will change as other obligations are satisfied.

Source: FORA

TABLE 5
Page 22



L

REUSE FOR THE 215" CENTURY. FORT ORD AUTHORITY DEMONSTRATES
DIVERSE APPROACH TG PROMOTING ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

In conjunction with the upcoming ADC 2008 Annual Conference, 360 will take a closer look af one of
the unique elements of the redevelopment of the former Fort Ord - a commitment to environmental
sustainability. Conference attendees interested in touring the project and leaming about the various
methods used to transfer the property and finance development, as well as how the Fort Ord Reuse
Authority is addressing contamination at the site, should sign up for the mobile workshop offered on
Sun., Aug. 10.

When officiats from nine jurisdictions along the Monterey Peninsula surrounding the former Fort
Ord established a set of guidelines for the redevelopment of the 28,000-acre property more than

a decade ago, they focused on issues such as creating a unique identity around educational
institutions, reinforcing the natural landscape and encouraging mixed-use communities. Underlying
these goals was a desire to promote sustainable practices and environmentai conservation.

Since the Fort Ord reuse plan was
completed in 1997, a variety of signs
of sustainable development efforts can
be seen across the former Army past,
including a LEED Platinum-certified
private school and employment centers
integrated with housing.

The benefits range from the expected —
reduced energy and water consumption

— to the more surprising — savings McMahan Hall, one of two buildings at the Chartwell Schoul which
in construction costs and increased was honored by the U.S, Green Building Council at a ceremony in
productivity. April. This multi-use huilding has nerth-facing glazed doors that

open to expand the indaor space to an outdoar plaza for large
“Applying sustainable principles produces  events. A simple material palette of hamboo tioer, salvaged fir wall
a wide range of long-term and short-term  paneling and an ecanomical tectum ceiling are complemented by
benefits. ... When all is said and done, elegant exposed trusses and balanced daylight.

we will have built a thriving, healthy,
conscientious, technology-current, active community and reduced the take on non-renewable
resources toward neutralizing our respective carbon footprint on the future,” said Michael Houlemard
Jr., executive officer of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA).

There are a number of ways to achieve sustainable development when converting a mifitary base,
added Steve Endsley, FORA's director of planning and finance. In addition to the range of features

Fort Ord, continued on pg. 2

A WEEKLY PERSPECTIVE ON
THE NEWS AND ISSUES FACING
COMMUNITIES WITH ACTIVE AND
CLOSED MILITARY BASES

)

A‘BASE REDEVELOPMENT......cocovvevenn. 5
Part Taps Federal Development for Ingleside
Transformation

#edical Complex Slated for Brooks City-Base

3

&

CONTENTS
\

s
INSIDE....c.cccueiesnenenB

Continuing Resolution

Looks Increasingly Likely

For FY 2009 Appropriations

\_ Y,

NEWS FROMADC.........covi i 3
Make a Differencel Jan ADC in a Volunteer
Fuent at Monteray

P ASSOCIATION OF
@l ComMUNITIES



{Fort Ord, continued from cover page)

that can be incorporated into buildings, other
approaches revolve around ways o reduce auto
emissions, such as providing transit service and
constructing bike and walking paths.

“It runs the gamut of different techniques. You pick
and choose [the ones] that are most cost effective;
that's kind of what we did,” Endsley said.

Setting the Standard

Skeptics of the green movement need ook no
further that the Chariwell School for proof that
incorporating environmental design principles into
the construction of a new building does not have

to break the bank. The private school, intended for
children through grade eight with learning difficuities,
was awarded the LEED (Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design) Platinum certification last
year by the U.S. Green Building Council. Chartwell
became the first complete educational campus to
earn the council's highest rating by taking advantage
of an array of design and construction features
intended to minimize the
use of energy, water and
materials, while taking
advantage of renewable
resources.

Perhaps the school's most
significant sustainable
elements are its reliance

an natural daylight and
fresh air because of their
effect on student learning,
says Executive Director
Douglas Atkins. The use of
day lighting can increase
the rate at which kids learn
reading and mathematics by
up to 20 percent, according
to an oft-quoted study Atkins

e

environment,

Chartwell’s library relies on natural day lighting,
sustainatle flodring and satvaged wood designed
for disassembly to create an optimal educational

finishes and materials designed to eliminate pollution
from velatile organic compounds and other sources.

The school opened in 2006 on former Army
properly in Seaside that Chartwell acquired from the
Monterey Peninsula Unified Schoat District. Other
design and construction features include:

w  net zero electricity design that relies on a
32-kilowatt solar array;

w water saving through the use of waterless
urinals, dual-flush toilets and an 8,700-
gallon rainwater cistern;

= sustainable framing — building 24 inches
on center rather than 16 inches used 30
percent less wood; and

s adding slag to the concrete mix resulted in
a product that is stronger, lighter in color
and reduces carbon dicxide emissions
by 70 percent compared to standard
concrete.

For Atkins' part, the economics of building green
are "pretty convincing,”
The project cost $310 per
square foot, compared to
an average cost of $350
per square foot to build

a school in California.
Factoring in the benefit
of lower operating costs
— assuming a 25-year
tifespan — would cut the
net construction cost to
$260 per square foot, he
said.

While the school incurred
a 9 percent construction
cost premium from using
sustainable design
principles and materials

cited. n fact, research
demonstrating a link between facility design and
student performance spurred the school’s decision to
build green, not environmentalist leanings, he said.

To maximize the use of daylight, skylights and
windows were sized and placed fo take advantage
of the sun. That saves electricity and reduces
requirements for the heating and air conditioning
system. To minimize the likelihood of toxic or
irritating fumes, Chartwell selected furnishings,

over conventional methods,
Atkins argues the invesiment is easily justified on
the basis of the enhanced learning environment it
creates even if there were no benefit from energy
and other resource savings. “If your mission is to
optimize learning for students, even for a 5-to-10-
percent increase in costs ... why not {do it)," Atkins
said,

"We think what will be happening in the future is
people won't be asking why go green economically,

Fort Ord, continued on pg. 3

Photos Courtesy
0f Michaet David
Rose Photography

PRESIDENT CEQ
Michael A, Jeffrey A. Finkle
Houlemard, Jr.

EXECUTIVE MANAGING EDITOR
DIRECTOR Dan Cohen
Eileen Giaimo

Defense Communities 360 is published weekly by
the Association of Defense Communities. If you have
any questions about the newsletter, please contact:

Dan Cohen, Managing Editor

Association of Defense Communities

734 15th St., NW, Suite 500, Washington, DC 20065
202/342-8472; fax: 202/822-681%

Email: deohen@defonsecommunities.org

Internet: wwwi defensecommunities.org

A PUBLICATION QF THE ASSOCIATION OF DEFENSE COMMUNITIES | WWW.DEFENSECOMMUNITIES.ORG | JULY 11, 2008



(Fort Ord, continued from pg. 2)

instead they'll be asking] why not go green if it has
these kinds of benefits,” Atkins said.

It’s a Reuse Project

FORA s playing a larger role in a separate project
incorporating sustainable building practices that

is just getting under way. In partnership with three
other organizations — the Association of Monterey
Bay Area Governments, the Builders Exchange of
the Central Coast and the local carpenters union
— the reuse authority is developing an office
complex that will include shared facilities for the four
graups. When the Imjin Office Park is completed,
the FORA staff will move from their current location
several blocks away.

The complex will be LEED certified and include

The Chartwell School's science field station features an
8,700-gallon rain catchment, rainwater coliection system,
overfiow sluice, fog cateher and science garden. When
the rain water catchment reaches capacity, it spills over
into the attached raceway, providing both fun and water
conservation awareness for students.

elements such as solar power and drought tolerant
plants. Each of the four organizations will own an
office building and share one large meeting hall,
Endsiey said, Grading of the site is currently under
way.

Participating in a public-private partnership has

helped jump start development of a site that had
been overlooked by iarger developers. And by
building the project "in a signature green way,”

he said, it can “provide symbolism” for the entire
redevelopment effort, "We're very excited about it,”

As part of its commitment to limit the impact of
development on the environment, FORA has
conducted an active recycling program of Army
buildings and other structures since development
began. Overall, workers have recycled about 98
percent of materials — including concrete and
asphalt, wood, metals and green waste such

as vegetation, trees and brush — that are not
hazardous, said Stan Cook, the reuse authority's
real property and facilities manager. However, about
21 percent of malerials can be hazardous, including
those cantaining lead-based paint, ashestos, PCBs
and mercury switches, Cook said.

Recycled concrete and asphalt structures were
reused almost entirely on the former base, which
has three crushing facilities. Much of those
materials have been used as the base under roads
and parking lots. Green waste also has been
recycled on site for uses such as landscaping and
erosion controk.

The reuse of materials from the post's 1,200
wooden structures from the World War Il era has
been less successful, primarily due to the presence
of lead-based paint. California regulations prohibit
ihe reuse of items retaining any lead contamination,
forcing much of the wood from barracks to be
disposed of, Cock said.

Recycling wood from other structures has been
more successful. Motor pool facilities, theaters

and other large huildings were not painted as
extensively as barracks were, making the job easier,
he said. So far, workers have removed about half

of the installation's wooden struciures, which were
built from 1939 to 1941,

Fort Ord, continued on pg, 4 2

Chip in at Chartweli!

Join ADC in our second Make-A-
Difference event being held in conjuncion
with the 2008 Annual Conference, On
Sunday Aug. 10, ADT will be offering
several volunteer opportunities at the
Chartwell Schoeol. a private academy

it Seaside for children with leaming
disabifities, Activifies will involve painting
and applying sealant. Come out and
make a difference!

Sign up online at
www.defensecommunities.org/
AnnualConference/Registration.itmi.

i vou have already registered for the
coiterence, you can add the voluntesr
event by selecting “Modifying an Existing
Registration” undar Step 1.

I you addilional guestions. please conlact
Lagh Hewlett al ADC at 202/942-9455 or
Ihewlett@defensecommunities.org.

APUBLICATION OF THE ASSOCIATION OF DEFENSE COMMUNITIES | WWW.DEFENSECOMMUNITIES.ORG | JULY 11, 2008



{Fort Ord., continued from pg. 3)

Seaside Workers to Live

By the Seashore

Beyond ensuring a particular building conserves natural resources,
sustainable development can be achieved by creating balanced communities
that integrate jobs and housing. The city of Seaside has negotiated a unique
arrangement with the developer of a luxury resort complex and the owner of
nearby apartments to provide affordable housing that would be available to
employees at the planned 275-room hatel.

The resort will be built around two historic, 18-hole golf courses, Bayonet and
Black Horse, acquired by Seaside from the Army. The courses are about a
half mile from the coast and provide scenic views of the Pacific Ocean and
Monterey Bay. In addition to the hotel, to be operated by Fairmont Hotels

& Resorts, the resort is slated to have 125 residences and 170 timeshares.
Normally, the developer would satisfy the city's affordable housing
requirement by designating 20 percent of the housing units for families
earning no mare than 120 percent of the county's median income.

To maximize the value of the resort's picturesque location — helping Seaside
as well as the developer — the city opted to meet the affordable housing
requirement at an adjacent property. The city is paying that property's

owner $5 million to restrict the rent of about 25 apartments lo a level that is
affordable to low- and moderate-income: families. About 15 additional units
would be priced so families eaming from 120-180 percent of the county’s
median income could afiord them, Those units would help fulfill FORA's
requirement that residential deveiopments provide “workforce fousing.”

The deal worked out by the city also calls for the resort developer, Seaside
Resort Development LLC, 1o sell the apartment owner land adjoining the
existing units at a steep discount to expand the development. Any new
units built would have to meet the city’s affordable housing requirement and

FORA's workforce requirement, as well as offer 10 additional moderately
priced apartments.

While the housing provided under the three-way deal among Seaside, the
resort developer and the apartment owner is not legally bound to go to the
hotel workers, the apartments’ subsidized rents will be affordable for the
resart’s employees. said Larry Seeman, the city’s constlting project manager
of the resort project. Seeman estimated the hote! could generate 300 to 350
jobs, covering housekeeping, chefs and other restaurant staff, maintenance
and management.

“Making sure this requirement is met nearby is important,” he said.

The resort developer is nearing completion of improvements for the first 30
residential lots. An affiliate of the developer is renovaling both golf courses,

a project scheduled to be finished by the end of the year. The city has been
making annual payments to the apartment owner since the deal was reached
two-and-a-half years ago and most of the units with restricted rents are
expected to be occupied by low- and moderate-income families later this
year, Seeman said. The hotel still is in the design stages.

"The affordable housing companent of the Seaside resort is an example of
how agencies can work together o find effective and creative solulions that
respond to the concerns of their communities,” said Jill Anderson, Seaside’s
assistant cily manager.

The conversion of Fort Ord has been a long time in coming, overcoming
numerous challenges singe it landed on the BRAC list in 1991. As

the installation’s reuse continues to take shape, though, itis clear the
redevelopment is staying true to the promises made by the post's surrounding
communities when they first established a vision for the project 11 years ago.

(360

A PUBLICATION OF THE ASSQOCIATION OF DEFENSE COMMUNITIES | WWW.DEFENSECOMMUNITIES.ORG | JULY 11, 2008



Continuing Resolution

Looks Increasingly Likely

The prospects that Congress will pass any FY
2009 spending hills before the slart of the new
fiscal year appear poor 45 a partisan dispute
within the House Approprialions Committee drags
an.

Last month Chairman David Ohey (D-Wis )
threatened Lo suspend action on all By 2008
spending legislation atter Jerry Lewis (R-Calil ).
the panel's ranking Republican. tied to force the
committee ta take up the Intenor Department
apprupriations measure while it was marking up a
separaie spending hill. Lewis move was intended
to allow a vote on a Republican-sponsored
amendment to open areas off the Atlantic and
Pacific coasts and the eastarn Gulf of Mexico

10 ol and gas drilling. Republicans sontend that
Demaocrats want to stall the amendment because
they don't have the votes to block if.

This week Obey sald he had no intention to
continue marking up £ 2009 spending hills
unlil Republicans agree to follow reyular order.
reported CO Today. Obey s commiltee appraved
the military conslruchon and veterans affai
spending Bill June 24 but itis not clear when

— or even i — House leadership will bring it fu
the floor.

fieanwhile. Senate Mawority 1eader Harry Reid
iD-Nevw.) said the Senate might take up the 2009
defense and milgon appropriations bills this
session before passing @ continuing resolution to
fund the government from Oct. Tuntil garly next
calendar year, according to CG Today. Unless

the Houss restaits the appropriations process.
though. funding for those two accounts also would
need (o be included i the continuing resolution,

BASE REDEVELOPMENT NEWS

~N

PORT TAPS FEDERAL DEVELOPMENT TO TRANSFORM INGLESIDE

The Port of Corpus Christi this week approved the selection of Washington, D.C.-based Federal
Development as the master developer for a 1,009-acre site made up of portions of Naval
Station Ingleside and an adjacent property owned by the port. The developer already has begun
identifying and soliciting companies to become tenants on the property, according to a written
statement released by Federal.

The firm will begin conducting marketing studies, assessing the site’s assets and identifying
development opportunities, culminating in & master development ptan. According to Senior Vice
President David Gazek, Federal is considering attracting companies involved in biotechnology,
green technotogy, marine studies and light industry. A ship operator and yacht builder have
expressed interest, he added.

The firm expects to submit a master plan by the end of the year.

“We will be creating a master development plan that seeks to maximize revenues, land value, job
growth, and economic development for the port, the city of Ingleside, and the region,” said Federal
CEO John Infantino.

About 900 acres of Ingleside, located on the Texas Gulf Coast, will revert to the port when the
Navy closes the base as a result of the agreement reached when the port conveyed the land to the
federal government in the 1980s. Federal will be responsible for developing 483 upland acres and
93 submerged acres al the base. The remaining 336 acres at Ingleside transferring to the port are
a dredge material disposal area. The firm also will be developing 433 acres of port property.

In addition, the base includes 155 acres not reverting to the port. The Navy has not et determined
how it will dispose of that piece.

MEDICAL COMPLEX SLATED FOR BROGKS CITY-BASE

The Brooks Development Authority has reached a deal to focate a new hospital at Brooks City-
Base, a signature project expected to create hundreds of jobs and invigorate the development’s
strategy to become a medical and biotech hub.

Under last month's agreement, Baptist Health System will build a hospital and two medical office
buildings on 28 acres of the former Air Force base in San Antonio. The project is estimated to cost
more than $100 million, reported the San Antonio Express-News. Baptist also will have the option
of acquiring 20 acres of contiguous land to develop other medical services.

*The medical complex that wili result is going to be a wonderful addition to the world class
bioscience, biomedical, academic, environmental, research and technology center we are creating
at Brooks City-Base," said Donald Jakeway, president and CEQ of the development authority.

The planned construction of new road infrastructure improving access to the medical campus was
critica to securing the relocation of Southeast Baptist Hospital to Brooks. Funding to extend a road
through the city-base will be paid for by the development authority, as well as through city and
county property taxes collected through a tax increment reinvestment zone.

A PUBLICATION OF THE ASSOCIATION OF DEFENSE COMMUNITIES | WWW.DEFENSECOMMUNITIES.ORG | JULY 11, 2008



NOTICE OF PRESCRIBED BURNS
The Army intends to conduct one or more prescribed burns at the
former Fort Ord before January 31, 2009.

This year the Army is considering conducting one or more prescribed bums of 80-140 acres each in the Impact
Area of the former Fort Ord in order to clear vegetation. This will allow safe removal of unexploded munitions
and explosives left over from when the Army used Fort Ord fo train soldiers. Prescribed burns will be
conducted in these areas as soon as possible (field and weather permitting). The Army intends to conduct
prescribed burms in these areas when conditions provide for best smoke management to minimize the impact to
local communities. |deal weather conditions include clear skies, warm temperatures (about 45° to 80°), and 2
few days without much wind (surface wind less than 9 miles an hour).

Last year, two areas (Units 2 and 3} located near Del Rey Oaks were prepared for a prescribed burn.
Unfortunately, the proper weather conditions did not occur and those burns could not be conducted. Units 2
and 3 remain the
priority for this MRS-BLM Burn Units: 2, 3, 18 and 22
burn season; A —
however, the
weather
conditions for
these units are
likely to occur
only once or
twice during the
burn season.
Therefore, two
other areas
(Units 18 and
22) located near
the Bureau of
Land
Management
(BLIM)
Headquarters
have been
selected as
burn locations i o~ IR pir B :
should the i : y < E ; g Road Closures .
weather ; Ao Closie Points
conditions
required for
these areas be
met during the 2008 burn season. The map shows the location of the burn units and roads that will be closed
during burn operations.

- A
S B :

L2 Durmg 2-3 Burn



The date for the burn will depend on optimum conditions. The Army will make an announcement when suitable
prescribed burning conditions are considered imminent and an additional announcement when the prescribed
bum is ignited. Direct notification will be provided by email or autodialer telephone for anyone who registers to
receive such notification. Community members who want to be put on a list for direct notification should phone
the Army at (800) 852-9699, or download an enrollment form at www.FortOrdCieanup.com. All notification
forms should be returned to the Army within 10 days of this notice. Please note the relocation program is no
longer offered.

The ignition of each prescribed burn is planned to last just one day. The Army may also conduct a follow-on
burn in an additional area if the weather conditions allow, although there may be one or more days between the
prescribed burns.

Fort Ord Prescribed Burn Notification Request (clip and send this coupon):
Name:
Address:

Phone:
Alternative Phone:
Email:
Alternative email;

Where to send notification request

Email: Melissa.Broadston@us.army.mil

Fax: 831-393-9188

Mail: Fort Ord Prescribed Burn Direct Notification Program
Fort Ord BRAC Field Office

P.O. Box 5008

Monterey, CA 93944-5008

Need more information?
Contact the Army at 242-7383 or toll free at 1-800-852-9699 or check the web site at www.FortOrdCleanup.com.
Para obtener informacion en Espanol contacte 831-393-1284.




